
 
 
 

Pensions Committee 
 
Date: Tuesday, 18 September 2012 
Time: 
 

6.30 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall 

 
 
Contact Officer: Pat Phillips 
Tel: 0151 691 8488 
e-mail: patphillips@wirral.gov.uk 
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk 
 

 
AGENDA 
 
1. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
 Members of the Committee are asked to declare any disclosable 

pecuniary and non pecuniary interests, in connection with any item(s) 
on the agenda and state the nature of the interest. 
 

2. MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June, 2012. 

 
3. LGPS UPDATE (Pages 7 - 34) 
 
4. GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PART MINUTES 12/07/12 

(Pages 35 - 38) 
 
5. ACCOUNTS 2011/12  
 
6. AC ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT (Pages 39 - 66) 
 
7. LAPFF CONFERENCE BOURNEMOUTH (Pages 67 - 68) 
 
8. UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITIES (Pages 69 - 78) 
 
9. ANNUAL EMPLOYERS CONFERENCE (Pages 79 - 80) 
 
10. DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 81 - 82) 
 

Public Document Pack



11. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - BALFOUR BEATTY (Pages 83 
- 86) 

 
12. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - HEALTH MANAGEMENT LTD 

(Pages 87 - 90) 
 
13. NAPF CONFERENCE (Pages 91 - 100) 
 
14. PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS (Pages 101 - 102) 
 
15. EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF MEMBERS OF THE 

PUBLIC  
 
 The following items contain exempt information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to 
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours 
exclusion. 
 
 

16. EXEMPT APPENDIX - MINUTES INVESTMENT MONITORING 
WORKING PARTY - 4 SEPTEMBER 2012  

 
 Appendix 1 to agenda item 14a , exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 

 
17. EXEMPT APPENDIX - PROPERTY INSURANCE  
 
 Appendix 1 to agenda item 14b , exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 

 
18. GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES 12 JULY, 

2012. (Pages 103 - 106) 
 
19. UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITIES (Pages 107 - 108) 
 
20. EXEMPT APPENDIX - APPOINTMENT OF PROVIDER OF PASSIVE 

INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES  
 
 Appendix 1 to agenda item 14c , exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 

 
 

21. EXEMPT APPENDIX - ALTAIR IMPLEMENTATION UPDATE  
 
 Appendix 1 to agenda item 14d , exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 

 
 

22. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - BALFOUR BEATTY EXEMPT 
APPENDIX (Pages 109 - 110) 

 



23. ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - HEALTH MANAGEMENT 
LIMITED EXEMPT APPENDIX (Pages 111 - 112) 

 
24. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



�����������		�

���
�

��������	
�����	��	�
�

������� ����������� ������������������
�
� ������������ ��������

 �!�����
"�!������
#$%������
#%���&�������
�

���������
!�"�����
#�"�'��
��(����
������������)�*���
�������!���+���

�
�
�
,������������
�

������������ ��!�������&���)�����������������
��-�������"��!������������
��������������.�������������������
$�)�������
���������/���0.,"1.�
�

#)���2���� ������������ .�3�����3��/������������
�� /���"*������������
�
�����(�22����0.,"1.�

�
�

�� 	�	�������������������
����������
����������
����
��
�
��+��� /�� ��'�� ��� �������� /����� ���� ���� ���� )������� ��� )�4��������
���������������������/����������������������2����������*���������������������
���������������*����������5�
�
�������������**���(�������������)������� �������+���������*����������+��2���
��+���*����������������-���5�
�

	� 	���
����
�
 �� �������� �*� &�/�� !�� ���� #���� ����2���� ��+������ ��� ������� �*� ���
����2��������	���������	��	5�
�
�����������
���������� !����"��#�$�����%�
�

6� ������
	��
����&�����'�����
�
,��/��������+�������������!�����"����������������+�������������#�����&�������
����� ����������� "������ !������ +� ��������� ��� 7��8������ �*� ��� ��������
�������5�
�
��������� �� 
���� ��! $����#� �(����� '��#�� � "�� �))�� ���� &�$������#� �*� ����
�� ��� �����������%�
�

9� �+�������
���
�

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



#��)�����*����#����2����*�-������1**�����)�������+���������)��2�����*����
&����� ��������� ������� "���� 	��9� )��4��� ���� ��� )��)����� ��� ��������� ��
:��/�������)����;����)�����*����*�������������2�5�
�
 �� �)��������������� ��� �*�����*� ���"�����������"�������� ���)������
����2�����.��������,������������������28����)���������������/������**������&��"�
�����������������)����������%�,<��,�4���������))��5�
�
#�������/���������/��������������������*�������*����)��)����&��"�	��9�
/������������������))���=��������)���5�
�
��-� ���� �2��� ��� ���� �� ������ ������� �����2���� /���� &�#� ��� ����� ����
��������� ��� �**������ &��"� 	��9� "���� %*���� /+���� *����/��2� ���������
���2��������*����-���>���/�+�)�'�	��9�/+���5�
�
�����������
����
�
,-� ����#�)�#��"�� ����%�
.-� �����**�$�#��"��$� /#��!������� �"�� /�����$������������+���)#�*�##���

)�#� �#�� ������ /������**�$����.0,1�#�*�#��2�"����%�
�


� ��&��
	��
�	���
����+�3��4��+����
5����	���
���,,�������.0,.��
�
#� �)�����*� ���#����2����*�-������1**����)���������+���/���� �����������*�
���,�����������������2�(��'��2��������,�(�������������#)����	��	�����?�����
	��	5�
�
 ����������*� ��� ,�(��������#)����	��	�����?�����	��	��/�� ��������������
�))���=��������)���5�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� �� !���� �*� ���� � ������ �� 	� ���#� /� 3�#6� /� ��#�(�
7�	3�-�"���))#����%�
�

?� ������+�&���	��
��'���������������������3���
��
�
#� �)���� �*� ��� #����2� ���*� -������ 1**���� �@����� ������������ ��� ������ ���
&����������������������� �&���� ,�����������*����� ��� +� ���� ���./)����
*����
����A�")��+��	��	5�
�
��������� �� 
���� ����  ����� �*� )#��)�$����� ���� ����� "�� �!"������� ��� ����
�$�� /�����*��� � $���**�$�#������� ����)����"��%�
�

A� ��������
�
���������
�������������
�
#� �)���� �*� ��� #����2� ���*� -������ 1**���� �@����� ��� �������� ��� ���/�
)��������� ���� +�� $����� ��+��� ��� =������ +����� ��� +���*� �*� ��������
�������-���5�
�
�����������
����
�
,-� ��! $����#� +��**#�(� 3���� $� �� !��� ��� "�� � � �8�$!����� 	��"�#� �*�
�����%�

Page 2



�
.-� ��! $����#� �  � 	$��$��� � $� �� !��� ��� �� �+�� ��"�!#� +#�!)�
�))�� ��� ��� �������$���+���# �� ���� ��� �����������%�
�

B� 
������5�	���+�	��
�������������
�.0,,9,.��
�
#� �)���� �*� ��� #����2� ���*� -������ 1**���� )������ �� ���/� �*� ��������
����2���� ���������� /������ �������� ������� -���� ���-�� *��� ��� 	���<�	�
*��������� �������� �)�����������������������*����8���)������/���� ��� ��������
����2���������2������������������2����)�������5��,������+��)�)�������
����������/��������������,�-#� �����������2�������5�
�
�����������
��������
#���!#(�	� �/��� ���  !�����)�#��*�#�.0,,9,.�"�� �����
� ���/#���%�
�

C� ��&��
	��
�������	������
�
#� �)�����*� ���#����2����*�-������1**����������� ��� ���������)�*��������*�
���������������-���� *��� ��� ��������6��������	��	���� ����������+�� ���
(�����)���5�
�
�����������
��������#�)�#��"�� ����%�
�

��� ��	����������5��������
������'�����������+����&������
�
#��)�����*����#����2����*�-������1**������*�������+����*���������������'��
�������2�����������))��������))���������������*����!����������2�"������*���
���������� ��� �������� ������� -���� ��� ��  ����*�� #��������� D���5�  ��
���)����������������������2����������/����(���������������������������"������
*������)������*��������*������.���+��	�������6��1���+��	��	5�
�
#�*�������)����/�����������������=�)�������������2���5�
�
�����������
����
�
,-� �))#����� �*� ���� �))��$���� � *�#� �������� � ��� ���� 	�#��(����� �� ��� �

�! ���*�'�������� � /���#��$���"�� ����%�
�
.-� ��/��� ��$!�� ��� "�� �#�*���� � �� �))#����� "(� ���� �$�� /� ��#�$��#� �*�

��2:�'��;�������	� �/��� ��� ��	� ���#� /��**�$�#%�
�

��� ��������������+��
�
#� �)���� �*� ���#����2����*� -������1**���� ��*�������+��� �*� ��� ������������
������ ��� ��� ,�������� ���������2� (��'��2� ������ �,�(��� ��� ��� #)���� 	��	��
*����/��2���)����������+���D%$�� ���)��)��������������*��)������ *��� ����������
D������2������������������)��2�����*� ��)������2���������2�����������D%$�
������������5��
�
#�*�������)����/�����������������=�)�������������2���5�
�
�����������
��������#�)�#��"�� ����%�

Page 3



�
�	� ������
	��
���������&��������+���������
��5����&������

�
#��)�����*� ���#����2����*�-������1**���� ��*�������+����*������������*���
)��������� )������ ��� �))����� �� )������� �*� 2��+��� �������� ������� ��� ���
���������������-���� ���� ��������� �������+��� �))���� ��� �/���� �*�
�����������5� ���������*�����������������/���)�������������=�)���)�������
����2����
�
�����������
��������*�#��#�$���� ����� ������8��)��#�)�#�����)#������/��"���
$!����(���#��$����������	�#��(������� ��� ��! ��"���))�� ���%�
�

�6� ��������������+:���&������������������������������'	��
��
�
#��)�����*����#����2����*�-������1**������*�������+����*������������*����
����� ������2� =����� ��� ��)��� �*� ��� �������� �*��+������� /��'�� *��� ���
�������D������2��&���)����/�����/����/���+����-����)�����*� ���������)��)����
���������)���*����5� ��������2�)����������+��������������+���*��*���-�+��
�D�%�������$�������D%$�5�
�
#� *������ �)���� ��)���� *���� �D%$� ��� ��� ����� )������� /��� �������� ��� ���
=�)�������������2���5�
�
��������� �� 
���� ���� ��2���� $���� �� ��#� � � ���� �!�� �!��� ��� � � ���� �8��)��
#�)�#�:�2��$������"�� ��$$�)����! ��#�����/���� :�"�� ����%�
�

�9� 
'����5������&��3�����<
��������&��
	��
�	����
��������4�����
����������=��
�����
�
#��)�����*����#����2����*�-������1**������*�������������������������*����
��������*���������/���*����=�����������������������*���03�����$���)���
$@�����E�D���'�%��'���F���./�����  �,����������������0��2�����5��
�
 ���������*�������/��/��������������������/�����+����������+4������*������
���������2�*����)��������������������/����������2�����)��������5�-�������*����
�������������/�����+�����������������������*���������������/�����+4��� ���
��������������������2���2����������2�����)��������)�������,�(������2�5�
�
 �������������������/��/��)�������������=�)���)�����������2���5�
�
�����������
��������#����2��� ��������#���(��#��8�� ��� :��!">�$�����$� �� !���
�� ���#� /��*�)�#*�#�� $���*������ ������ ���� ������*�#����$6���$6:�	;+:�
��2�� :�

�� ��# ���� ���� ��� �/����� �$�� /��� �*����##� /��� ������������ �
�����8��)��#�)�#�:�"�� ����%�
�

�
� ����
����5��	����
������+��&��
��
�
#��)�����*����#����2����*�-��������*�������������������������*����������2�
�))��������� ��2������ +�� ��)����� ��������� ���� ��������� ��������� ��� ���
���5�
�

Page 4



��)��������������������2���������������/�����/�����+�������� �������2���
!������������������� �����������1���+��	��	����������2������5����5�5� � ��
������2� ������� /��� ����� ��� )������ *���� ������� ���� �/� ������ ��� )������
@������ ��*����������������������2�5� � ���*�������/�����=)����)������@�����
���2����������5����+���/��/����������������)�����*���������������5�� ��
�2����/��������������))���=����������)���5�
�
�����������
����	��"�#������ �������#�� � /���� ��� �,,��$��"�#:�.0,.%�
�

�?� ������
5����
���������������������+�	��
���
�
#��)�����*����#����2����*�-������1**������*������������������������*����
���������� �*� �� ����� =����� *��� ��������� �����2����� *��� ��� )��)����
)���*����� ���� ��������� ��� =������� +�� ��=� ������� �*� ��� =�����2�
�����2����5�
�
�����������
�����
�
,-� �����8�� ��� �����8���� /��##� /��� ���*�#�� �!#� $��"���/#���%�
�
.-� ���� $���� $��� �� �*� �� )#�$!#��� �� �8�#$���� *�#� � �!#� $�� *�#� ����

)#�)�#�(�)�#�*������*�	�#��(������� ��� ��! ��"�� ����%�
�

�A� �<
����������	���	�	�&���������
��
�+5��
�
#� �)���� �*� ��� #����2����*� -������1**���� ��*�������+��� �*� ��� ��������� ���
=���� ��� ��� �*� �������� �������� �����2��� ��� �������� ��� ��2��2� ���'���
@�����5�
�
�����������
��������#�)�#��"�� ����%�
�

�B� �<�	�
������	�
�������<�����������	�	��������
'����������
�
�����������
���:�! ��#���$��� �,00�7�-�71-��*�������$���+���# �� ���$��,?@.:�
����)!"��$�"���8$�!����*#������������ /��!#� /�$� ����#���� ��*�����*����2� /�
������ �*� "!�� ���� � � ���� /#�! ��� ����� ���(� � ������ ���� ��6��(� ���$���!#�� �*�
�8��)��� *�#����� ������*� ���"(�����#����� ��)�#�/#�)���*���#�,��*��$���!���
,.�� 7������ ���-� ��� ������$�%� �
����!"��$� � ��#���� ���������"�� ��))������ ��
*���!#���8$�!��� %�
�
�

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: LGPS UPDATE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the recent informal Local Government Association 
employer and respective Trade Union member consultations; undertaken to 
ascertain the level of support of the LGPS 2014 benefit design proposals.  

 
1.2   It also covers the key provisions of the LGPS (Miscellaneous) 2012 Regulations and 

Merseyside Pension Fund’s role in increasing employer awareness of the statutory 
duties and compliance requirements under Auto-Enrolment legislation. 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

Reform of the LGPS – The 2014 Project 
 

2.1 The Local Government Association (LGA) issued a consultation for participating 
LGPS employers on 27 June 2012 seeking the general support of employers to the 
headline terms of the new Scheme benefits under the 2014 reform framework.  The 
consultation closed on 27 July 2012. 

 
2.2      Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) in proactively encouraging engagement to the 

consultation organised a seminar for employers’ at Liverpool Town Hall on 17 July 
2012.  The keynote speaker, the Head of Pensions at LGA, provided valuable insight 
into the work and deliberations of the new Scheme design.  The information 
provided and the opportunity for questions will have assisted those who attended in 
making an informed response to the consultation. 

   
2.3      MPF submitted a response dated 26 July attached at Appendix 1, setting out its view 

on the financial impact from both the members’ and employers’ perspective. The 
response also highlighted the additional operational, administrative and 
communication requirements on both funds and employers - identifying the probable 
need for additional resources. 

 
2.4  In general terms, the MPF is broadly supportive of the proposals and believes the 

benefit package has the potential to meet the Government objective to provide good 
pension provision valued by the employee and affordable to both. The intent to limit 
member contribution increases, improve accrual rates and the introduction of a 
50/50 option in exchange for a later retirement age should help encourage member 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

participation. However, it is imperative that the future cost management mechanism 
is robust, in order to deliver an appropriate calibration of cost and address the 
Scheme’s continuing financial viability. 

 
2.5  The Trade Unions balloted their members during July and August and promoted the 

proposals as a fair and balanced offer ensuring future affordability and sustainability 
of the LGPS. The GMB members voted 95% in favour with Unison and Unite’s 
results still to be announced at the time of writing this report. 

 
2.6  It is expected, subject to a favourable outcome from all stakeholders, that the 

process  will continue in accordance with the following delivery framework:- 
 
By    New Scheme Process 
  
Autumn 2012   DCLG release statutory consultation 
 
Jan – Mar 2013  Draft and Actual Regulations issued 
April – Mar 14  Software providers to update systems 
    Actuarial Valuation reflecting new regulations 
 
1 April 2014   New Scheme implementation   
 
 

 LGPS (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 
 
2.7  The (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 were laid before Parliament on 1 August 

2012 and will come into force from 1 October 2012. The regulations make technical 
amendments to assist in the delivery of Scheme provisions and corrective 
references to ensure compliance with other legislation. 

 The Statutory Instrument is attached as Appendix 2. 
 
2.8  A number of the revisions relate to dependant benefits and ill heath provisions to 

ensure equitable treatment of all membership categories.  
 
2.9  The major implications to Scheme administration prevail from the measures 

designed to protect other Scheme employers and Council Tax payers in the event of 
an employer failing to meet its financial obligations.  In summary these are: 

 
• Regulations 25 & 44 – introduces a mandatory prescription for Risk Assessments 

to be carried out by Community Admission bodies as previously this was only a 
requirement for Transferee Admission Bodies.  In addition, there is a proviso that 
a bond or other form of guarantee is only necessary where the level of risk is 
identified to warrant an appropriate undertaking. 

 
• Regulation 45 – caters for the transfer of assets and liabilities between funds and 

permits the Secretary of State to make a direction order to support the 
agreement of amalgamating funds. It also removes the problem of inhibiting 
ventures due to the crystallisation of deficits. 

 
 

 

Page 8



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

• Regulation 35 – facilitates flexibility in managing the funding position of Scheme 
Employers exiting the Fund. This includes provision of Scheme Employers to be 
subject to deficit payments on termination and provision for existing employers to  
fund for termination in advance through higher contributions   

 
2.10 The majority of the amendments will lead to improved management and governance 

of the LGPS. However, despite vociferous opposition from Pension Funds and the 
LGA, to the proposal to bring forward the date for funds to issue Annual Benefit 
Statements, DCLG failed to accept the concerns of administrators.  

 
2.11 The revised timeframe for issuing Annual Benefit Statements by 5 October each 

year is extremely challenging as MPF is reliant upon the receipt of timely, accurate 
data from many Scheme employers following the end of the tax year.  As a new 
statutory requirement, MPF will deploy resources to issue the majority of Statements 
within the new timeframe.   

 
Auto-Enrolment 
 
2.12 MPF in conjunction with its Actuary has made arrangements for a fee-based 

workshop for employers.  Mercer would outline to the attending employers their 
obligations under Workplace Pension Reform, specifically the Auto-Enrolment of 
employees into an occupational pension and the re-enrolment of optant outs every 
three years. Led by Mercer, the workshop would assist employers in evaluating their 
own individual compliance and state of readiness with regard to their statutory, 
procedural and communication requirements.  

 
2.13 The event is aimed at HR, Payroll, Pensions and Finance staff and will take place on 

5 September 2012 at Liverpool Town Hall with the Mercer costs of delivery spread 
amongst all the delegates. 

 
2.14 MPF has forwarded draft guidance issued by LGA to the larger Scheme employers 

defining auto–enrolment statutory duties, categorisation of employees, information 
and disclosure and compliance requirements. The guide provides template letters 
and information flowcharts to assist employers in communicating with employers and 
clarifies how the LGPS meets the criteria as a qualifying occupational pension 
scheme under auto -enrolment. 

 
2.15 MPF is also planning to provide a bespoke Seminar in October/November to update 

employers of the revised administrative requirements for auto-enrolment; including 
the necessary changes to Fund Forms for new entrants and the processing of optant 
outs from the Scheme.  

 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The requirement for new admission bodies to carry out an appropriate Risk 
Assessment is difficult to implement as the particular body will have a vested interest 
in presenting a favourable view of the risks being undertaken so as to minimise the 
requirement for any Bond or Guarantee. However, the stipulation that the 
assessment must be to the satisfaction of the Administering Authorities will curtail 
the incidence of exposure to material loss. 

 

Page 9



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

3.2    Whilst not a direct risk to MPF, there is a significant risk to Scheme Employers 
should they fail to comply with the statutory duties under Auto–Enrolment.  The 
Pension Regulator will impose enforcement notices including escalating financial 
penalties of up to a maximum daily rate of £10,000 

 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 

5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 MPF has formally responded to the LGA employer consultation on Scheme Reform 
and encouraged employer engagement in the informal process. There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising out of this report 

 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

 

7.1 As a result of the shortened regulatory timeframe to issue Annual Benefit 
Statements, MPF will need to actively monitor its operational resources and re-
consider its data reconciliation processes with employers. 

 
7.2   If the proposed basis of the 2014 Scheme Reform receives the support of both 

Employers and Unions, the future change to the fundamental benefit design and the 
complexities of retained member protections will require a strategic overhaul of 
administration arrangements, resources and procedures to deliver the relevant 
communications, process change and IT system updates. 

 
7.3   The first staging date for an employer under Auto–Enrolment within MPF is March 

2013, with other employers following at various intervals over the coming years.   
Inevitably the statutory information and communication requirements will increase 
administrative costs for both employers and MPF.   Employers may also experience 
significant increases in employer pension contributions during the financial year 
2013/14. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 No, because the LGPS 2012 Miscellaneous Regulations have already been 

assessed by Government with regard to equality. 
 

Page 10



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That Members note the report. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 There is a requirement for Members of the Pension Committee to be kept up to date 
with legislative developments to carry out their decision making role in order to 
enable them to make informed decisions. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 

1- MPF Response to LGA on Employer Consultation Issued 27 June 2012 
 
      2 - LGPS (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 

 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 
LGPS (Miscellaneous) Regulations 2012 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



!
!
!
Sir!Merrick!Cockell!!
Local!Government!Association! ! ! ! ! !
Local!Government!House!
Smith!Square! !
London!
SWIP!3HZ! !
! ! !
!

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME REFORM 2014 

Wirral!Council!is!responsible!for!the!administration!of!the!Merseyside!Pension!Fund!which!is!
part!of!the!Local!Government!Pension!Scheme!(LGPS).!Merseyside!Pension!Fund!deals!with!
the!LGPS!pension!administration!and! investments!on!behalf!of! the! five!Merseyside!District!
Councils,!and!over!100!other!employers!on!Merseyside!and!elsewhere!throughout!the!UK.!
!
The! Fund! has! over! 45,000! active! contributing!members,! 44,362! pensioners! and! just! over!
33,000!deferred!pensioners.!It!is!responsible!for!the!investment!and!accounting!for!a!pension!
fund!of!£5billion.!
!
I!refer!to!the!employer!consultation!issued!on!27!June!in!regard!to!the!proposals!for!the!new!
LGPS!design,!to!take!effect!from!1!April!2014.!!I!submit!the!following!response!on!behalf!of!
Wirral! Borough! Council! in! its! capacity! as! the! Administering! Authority! of! the!Merseyside!
Pension!Fund!(MPF).!!A!formal!response!to!the!consultation!by!Wirral!Council,!in!its!capacity!
as!an!employer,!will!be!made!under!separate!cover.!

MPF! has,! throughout! the! considerations! of! a! new! LGPS,! recognised! the! requirement! to!
ensure! the! affordability! and! ongoing! viability! of! the! Scheme;! specifically! the! need! to!
calibrate!the!cost!of!pension!provision!between!the!membership!and!employers.!

Whilst!good!pension!provision!should!be!supported!it!is!imperative!that!it!is!sustainable!and!
that!any!revised!package!is!equitable!to!all!stakeholders.!!

!

1/! MEMBER!CONTRIBUTION!RATES!

MPF! has! conducted! numerous! surveys! of! its! membership! and! a! clear,! consistent!
preference! has! been! made! to! increase! normal! retirement! age! (by! linkage! to! State!
Pension!Age)!rather!than!any! increase!to!member!contributions,!which!could!make!the!
Scheme! unaffordable.! ! Consequently,! MPF! continues! to! strongly! support! any! future!
arrangements!which!would!result!in!fewer!members!wishing!to!leave!the!LGPS,!helping!
to!ensure!that!Funds!remain!sustainable!via!a!broad!active!membership!base.!!

The! current!proposals,! if! implemented,!will! see!no! contribution! increases! for! the!vast!
majority! of! members! (with! many! low! paid! and! part"time! members! actually! seeing!
reductions).! Furthermore,! an! improved! accrual! rate!will! see!many!members! receiving!
higher!benefits!in!retirement,!which!encourages!Scheme!participation.!

!

   

 Direct Line: 0151 242-1390 

Please ask for: Yvonne Caddock 

Date: 26 July 2012 

Page 13



2/! CAREER!AVERAGE!&!NORMAL!RETIREMENT!AGE!

The!future!proposal!of!Career!Average!with!an!accrual!rate!of!1/49th!and!CPI!indexation!
has!been!costed!on!a!broadly!equivalent!basis!to!the!current!1/60th!Final!Salary!Scheme!"!
the!main! objective! of! this! change! to! address! the! inequalities! inherent! in! final! salary!
arrangements!for!members!with!low!earnings!growth.!!

It!would!appear! that! the!significant! increase! in!accrual!rates,! (with!1/49th!being!22.4%!
larger!than!1/60th),!combined!with!CPI!revaluation,!will!be!beneficial!to!certain!groups!of!
members,!particularly!those!who!tend!to!see!no!or!only!modest!real!increases!in!pay!(i.e.!
the!majority)!!

However!it!is!imperative!that!the!alignment!of!Normal!Retirement!Age!to!State!Pension!
Age,!with!the!intended!link!to!longevity,!is!managed!with!diligence!as!it!is!this!link!which!
is!the!main!cost!savings!emanating!from!the!proposals.!

!

3/!!PENSIONABLE!PAY!

The!change! to! include!non"contractual!overtime!as!actual!pensionable!pay!will!have!a!
significant! impact! on! budgets! for! employers! where! such! overtime! constitutes! a!
substantial!element!of!the!payroll.!

!

4/!!THE!50/50!OPTION!

This!50/50!proposal! is!a!positive!step! from! the!members’!perspective!as! it!eases!both!
the!contribution!burden!in!the!current!economic!climate!and!potentially!the!incidence!of!
optant"outs!from!the!LGPS!in!the!longer!term.!!

This! option! could! initially! increase! cash! requirements! for! employers! due! to! the!
improvements! in!expected!Scheme! take"up! rates.! !Although! the! cost! is! lower! for! this!
benefit!it!is!still!more!than!the!nil!cost!that!otherwise!would!have!been!from!the!case!of!
non"participation.! Conversely,! the! improvements! in! the! membership! profile! would!
result! in! lower! contribution! rates! at! subsequent! valuations! and! would! assist! in!
maintaining!optimistic!funding!parameters.!!

It! is! evident! that! this! option! poses! significant! administrative! issues! for! Funds! and!
employers.! In! particular,! consideration! needs! to! be! given! to!whether,! as! part! of! the!
actuarial!valuation;!employers!would!be!offered!dual!future!service!rates,!split!between!
the!main!scheme!and! the!50/50!option.! ! If! the!current!arrangement!of!a!single! future!
service!rate! is!maintained,!then!any!savings!would!not!emerge! immediately!and!would!
not! take!effect! from! the!2013!valuation!unless!a! specific!assumption! is! introduced!on!
the!perceived!take"up!of!this!option.!

The!documentation!provided!suggests!that!the!applicable!employer!contribution!rate!is!
the!same! irrespective!of!the!differences! in!the!accrual!rates.!However,!the!regulations!
currently!provide!the!actuary!with!the!power!to!set!the!rates!as!appropriate.!

It!would!appear!that!the! low!cost!option!meets!the!criteria!as!a!qualifying!scheme!and!
specific!regulatory!provision! is!required!to!designate!the!main!Scheme!arrangement!as!
the!default!for!the!purposes!of!Auto"Enrolment!and!to!legally!facilitate!the!member’s!re"
enrolment!in!the!main!Scheme.!!

Page 14



5/!!COST!SAVINGS!FROM!PROPOSALS!

Although!the!headline!savings!are!stated!to!be!in!the!order!of!2%!of!pay!in!comparison!
to! the! current! Scheme,! it! is! important! that! employers! understand! that! these! savings!
may!not!necessarily!apply.!!

Whilst!the!average!trend!may!apply!to!councils,!some!employers!with!large!numbers!of!
older,! lower!paid!members!working!non! contractual!overtime!may! find! that! the!new!
proposals!actually!increases!employer!participation!costs.!

In! managing! expectations,! it! is! also! important! for! employers! to! understand! that!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!
the! contributions! required! to! fund! any! past! service! deficits! are! not! included! in! the!
overall! cost!envelope!of!19.5%!of!pay.! It! is! a! foregone! conclusion! that! in! the! current!
volatile!economic!environment! the! impact!of!deficits! could! remove!or!even!outweigh!
any!apparent!saving!from!the!new!Scheme.!

!

6/!!FUTURE!COST!MANAGEMENT!

The!major!focus!of!reform!has!been!on!the! initial!benefit!design;!however,!future!cost!
management! is! crucial! to! the! long! term! sustainability! of! the! Scheme.! Theoretically,!
linking!the!Normal!Retirement!Age!to!State!Pension!Age!will!lead!to!an!inbuilt!barometer!
that!reacts!to!emerging!changes!in!longevity.!!

The!cap"and"collar!mechanism!will!influence!the!cost!and!structure!of!the!Scheme!more!
readily!and!will!provide!the!necessary!agility! in!maintaining!an!equitable!calibration!of!
costs!between!members!and!employers.!

!

7/!!COMMUNICATIONS!

It! is! essential! that! during! this! process! of! reform,! due! consideration! is! given! to! the!
operational! aspects! of! delivery,! in! particular! the! communication! and! administrative!
requirements!facing!both!Funds!and!employers.!!

Employers! need! to! be! engaged! and! participative! in! the! communication! of! Scheme!
reform! to! their! employees.!Whilst!MPF! and!other! Funds!will!develop! communication!
strategies!and!plans!over!the!coming!months,!any!support!and!direction!by!the!LGA!and!
government!departments!would!be!welcomed!and!appreciated.!!It!is!also!important!that!
it! is! recognised! that! Funds!will! need! to! be! appropriately! resourced! to! carry! out! this!
communication!task.!

!

8/!!ADMINISTRATION!

Migration! from! one! benefit! package! to! another! presents! a! major! challenge! to! the!
administration!of! the!Fund;!both!at!employer!and!Fund! level.!The!complexities!of! the!
proposals!will!require!a!greater!number!of!pay!bands!for!contribution"setting!purposes.!
Furthermore,! a! mix! of! final! salary! and! CARE! benefits,! a! change! in! accrual! rate! and!
different! pensionable! pay! definitions,! create! a! number! of! operational! difficulties! to!
overcome!and!will!require!an!increased!level!of!administrative!resource.!

!

Page 15



It! is!essential!that!the!detail!of!the!new!Scheme! is!known!as!soon!as!possible,! in!order!
that!software!providers!and!operational!processes!can!be!developed! to!cope!with! the!
burden! of! running! the! separate! benefit! structure/calculations.! As! auto"enrolment!
responsibilities!need!also!to!be!addressed!and!delivered,! it! is!paramount!that!planning,!
resourcing! and! implementation! commences! upon! the! general! acceptance! of! the!
proposals.!

!

9/!!COUNCILLOR!SCHEME!

To! avoid! further! complexity! and! confusion! it! would! appear! opportune! to! move!
Councillors!within!the!general!scope!of!the!2014!Scheme.!!This!would!be!both!equitable!
to! the! members! and! to! alleviate! some! of! the! administrative! burden! of! running! two!
different!CARE!pension!benefit!Schemes.!!

!

MPF!believes!the!proposed!package!meets!the!long!standing!objective!of!the!government!for!
employers! to! provide! good! pension! provision,! which! is! valued! by! the! employee! and!
affordable!to!both.!!

The!general!intent!to!limit!member!contribution!increases!in!exchange!for!a!later!retirement!
age! is! reasonable,!but! it! is!only! through! the!appropriate!application!of! the!cap"and"collar!
mechanism!that! future!sustainability!can!be!sought.! !The!50/!50!option! together!with! the!
improved! accrual! rate! is! attractive! to! employees! and! should! encourage! member!
participation!ensuring!continuing!financial!viability.!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

Yours!sincerely!

!

!

!

Tom!Sault!

Acting!Director!of!Finance!&!Section!151!Officer!
Wirral!Council!

!

!

!

!

cc. Jeff!Houston,!Head!of!Pensions!"!LGA!

!

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY 

MINUTES 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER: 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report provides members with the minutes of the Governance & Risk Working 
Party (GRWP) held 12 July 2012. 

 
1.2 An exempt report on the agenda, the minutes of the GRWP on 12 July 2012, contains 

exempt information.  This is by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs 
of any particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The GRWP meets twice yearly to enable Members and their advisers to consider 
governance and risk matters, relating to Merseyside pension Fund, in greater detail. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report.  
 

Agenda Item 4

Page 35



 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
  
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That members approve the minutes of the GRWP 
 
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S 

13.1 The approval of the GRWP minutes by Pensions Committee forms part of the 
governance arrangements of Merseyside Pension Fund.  These arrangements were 
approved by Pensions Committee as part of the Fund’s Governance Statement on 27 
June 2011. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Attendance and declarations of interest. 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

GRWP minutes 

GRWP minutes 

GRWP minutes 

March 2011 

September 2011 

March 2012 

 

Page 36



APPENDIX 1 

 

Minutes of the Meeting of the Governance and Risk Working Party  
 

Thursday 12 July 2012 
 
 

In attendance:  
 
Councillor Pat Glasman (Chair) (WBC) Peter Wallach (Head of MPF) 

 
Councillor Geoffrey C.J. Watt (WBC) 
 

Paddy Dowdall (Investment Manager) 

Councillor George Davies  (WBC) Yvonne Caddock (Principal Pensions 
Officer) 

Councillor Mike Hornby (WBC) 
 

Keith Higgins (Benefits Manager) 
 

Councillor Tom Harney (WBC) 
 

Guy Hayton (Operations Manager) 
 

Paul Wiggins (Unison) 
 

Donna Smith (Group Manager) 

Councillor Harry Smith (WBC) 
 

Adam Williamson (Investment Assistant) 

Councillor Sylvia Hodrian (WBC) 
 

Emma Jones (PA to Head of MPF) 

Councillor Adam Sykes (WBC) 
 

 

Councillor John Fulham (St. Helens)  
  
  
 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Councillor Ann McLachlan (WBC) 
 

Councillor Cherry Povall (WBC) 
 

Councillor Adrian Jones (WBC) 
 

Patrick McCarthy (Co-optee) 

Phil Goodwin (Unison) 
 

Councillor Norman Keats 

 
 
1.   Approval of Minutes  
 
The minutes were approved. 
 
 
2. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest 
 

Page 37



Page 38

This page is intentionally left blank



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

1

A
n

n
u

al
 g

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

re
p

o
rt

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

 

Agenda Item 6

Page 39



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.3

B
ef

o
re

 I 
g

iv
e 

m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

4

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

5

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
1

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..

12

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 R

ep
o

rt
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
14

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 C
o

rr
ec

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
16

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 D
ra

ft
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

9

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

22

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..
25

     

Page 40



K
ey

 m
es

sa
g

es
 

T
h

is
 r

ep
o

rt
 s

u
m

m
ar

is
es

 t
h

e 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 
fr

o
m

 m
y 

20
11

/1
2 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 f
in

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 is

 s
u

b
st

an
ti

al
ly

 c
o

m
p

le
te

. 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 a

 s
m

al
l n

um
be

r 
of

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 is
su

es
, I

 in
te

nd
 to

 is
su

e 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
A

nn
ua

l 
ac

co
un

ts
 fo

r 
20

11
/1

2 
an

d 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
ds

 A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
pr

es
en

te
d 

m
e 

w
ith

 a
 s

et
 o

f s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
ut

or
y 

de
ad

lin
e.

 T
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 to

 a
 g

oo
d 

st
an

da
rd

 a
nd

 w
er

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

by
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

et
 o

f w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s.

 T
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
of

 th
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

tim
el

in
es

s 
of

 th
ei

r 
re

ce
ip

t 
re

pr
es

en
ts

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pr
ev

io
us

 y
ea

r.
  

I i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 n

on
-m

at
er

ia
l e

rr
or

s,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 h

av
e 

be
en

 a
m

en
de

d 
by

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 N

on
e 

of
 th

es
e 

er
ro

rs
 h

ad
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pa

ct
 to

 
th

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

.  
 I a

ls
o 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
er

ro
rs

 a
nd

 n
on

 tr
iv

ia
l e

rr
or

s,
 a

ll 
of

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 h

av
e 

am
en

de
d.

 T
he

se
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

fo
r 

yo
ur

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
at

 a
pp

en
di

x 
3.

 
 T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

ot
he

r 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 m
at

te
rs

 th
at

 I 
ne

ed
 to

 b
rin

g 
to

 y
ou

r 
at

te
nt

io
n.

 
   A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
3

 

Page 41



B
ef

o
re

 I 
g

iv
e 

m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 

M
y 

re
p

o
rt

 in
cl

u
d

es
 o

n
ly

 m
at

te
rs

 o
f 

g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 in
te

re
st

 t
h

at
 h

av
e 

co
m

e 
to

 m
y 

at
te

n
ti

o
n

 in
 

p
er

fo
rm

in
g

 m
y 

au
d

it
. I

 h
av

e 
n

o
t 

d
es

ig
n

ed
 m

y 
au

d
it

 t
o

 id
en

ti
fy

 a
ll 

m
at

te
rs

 t
h

at
 m

ig
h

t 
b

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

.
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

I c
an

 c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 c

om
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

's
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

au
di

to
rs

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 E

S
 1

 (
re

vi
se

d)
 -

 In
te

gr
ity

, O
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 

an
d 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. 

I a
m

 n
ot

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 th
at

 m
ay

 a
ffe

ct
 th

e 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 o

r 
m

e,
 th

at
 I 

am
 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 a

ud
iti

ng
 a

nd
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

N
ex

t 
S

te
p

s 

I a
sk

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 to
: 

!
 

C
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t b

ef
or

e 
re

co
m

m
en

di
ng

 th
e 

ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 (

A
R

M
C

) 
of

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il.
 

!
 

ta
ke

 n
ot

e 
of

 th
e 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
ac

co
un

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t (
A

pp
en

di
x 

3)
;  

!
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

to
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
 th

e 
le

tte
r 

of
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
be

fo
re

 I 
is

su
e 

m
y 

op
in

io
n 

an
d 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 (

A
pp

en
di

x 
4)

; a
nd

 

!
 

co
nf

irm
 y

ou
r 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 (

A
pp

en
di

x 
6)

. 

I w
ill

 a
sk

 th
e 

A
R

M
C

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t b

ef
or

e 
it:

 

!
 

co
ns

id
er

s 
th

e 
m

at
te

rs
 r

ai
se

d 
in

 th
is

 r
ep

or
t b

ef
or

e 
ap

pr
ov

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

; 

!
 

ta
ke

s 
no

te
 o

f t
he

 a
dj

us
tm

en
ts

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

is
 r

ep
or

t; 

!
 

ap
pr

ov
es

 th
e 

le
tte

r 
of

 r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

be
fo

re
 I 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n;
 a

nd
  

!
 

ag
re

es
 a

 r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

. 
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
4

 

Page 42



F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

T
h

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

’s
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
re

 a
n

 im
p

o
rt

an
t 

m
ec

h
an

is
m

 f
o

r 
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 F
u

n
d

 t
o

 
ac

co
u

n
t 

fo
r 

it
s 

st
ew

ar
d

sh
ip

 o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 f
u

n
d

s.
 A

s 
M

em
b

er
s 

yo
u

 h
av

e 
fi

n
al

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

th
es

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
t 

is
 im

p
o

rt
an

t 
th

at
 y

o
u

 c
o

n
si

d
er

 m
y 

fi
n

d
in

g
s 

b
ef

o
re

 y
o

u
 a

d
o

p
t 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
.

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

S
ub

je
ct

 to
 s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
of

 a
 s

m
al

l n
um

be
r 

of
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 m

at
te

rs
, I

 p
la

n 
to

 is
su

e 
an

 a
ud

it 
re

po
rt

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
an

 u
nq

ua
lif

ie
d 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. M

y 
op

in
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il'
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t. 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1a

nd
 1

a 
co

nt
ai

n 
co

pi
es

 o
f m

y 
dr

af
t a

ud
it 

re
po

rt
s.

 

A
s 

at
 3

0 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

2,
 m

y 
w

or
k 

is
 o

ng
oi

ng
 in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
re

as
. T

he
se

 o
ut

st
an

di
ng

 m
at

te
rs

 a
re

: 

! 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 te
st

in
g 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

t v
al

ua
tio

ns
; 

! 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

; 

! 
C

he
ck

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
l p

os
t a

ud
ite

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
; a

nd
 

! 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

l A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 

 

I e
xp

ec
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

al
l m

y 
w

or
k,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

y 
fin

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s,
 b

ef
or

e 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
18

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 I 
w

ill
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
as

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f m
y 

or
al

 r
ep

or
t. 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

5
 

Page 43



C
o

rr
ec

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

 

M
y 

w
or

k 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

a 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 n
on

-m
at

er
ia

l e
rr

or
s 

in
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
au

di
t. 

N
on

e 
of

 th
es

e 
ha

ve
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

at
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2.
 T

he
se

 h
av

e 
no

w
 b

ee
n 

am
en

de
d.

 A
 s

ch
ed

ul
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
is

 a
tta

ch
ed

, a
pp

en
di

x 
3.

 I 
al

so
 a

gr
ee

d 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

na
rr

at
iv

e.
 

T
he

 m
os

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

m
en

dm
en

ts
 a

re
: 

! 
O

ve
rs

ta
te

m
en

t o
f P

oo
le

d 
In

ve
st

m
en

t V
eh

ic
le

s 
of

 £
3.

27
9 

m
 d

ue
 to

 in
co

rr
ec

t c
ur

re
nc

y 
ra

te
s 

be
in

g 
us

ed
. 

! 
M

is
-c

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 c

re
di

t a
s 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e 
- 

am
en

dm
en

t o
f £

3.
68

7m
. 

! 
R

e-
cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

of
 U

K
 q

uo
te

d 
eq

ui
tie

s 
to

 o
ve

rs
ea

s 
qu

ot
ed

 e
qu

iti
es

 -
 a

m
en

dm
en

t o
f £

12
.1

83
 m

. 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 a
n

d
 m

y 
fi

n
d

in
g

s 

I r
ep

or
te

d 
to

 y
ou

 in
 m

y 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 A
ud

it 
P

la
n 

th
e 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ris
ks

 th
at

 I 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

n 
T

ab
le

 1
 I 

re
po

rt
 to

 y
ou

 m
y 

fin
di

ng
s 

ag
ai

ns
t e

ac
h 

of
 th

es
e 

ris
ks

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

6
 

Page 44



T
ab

le
 1

: 
R

is
ks

 a
n

d
 f

in
d

in
g

s
 

R
is

k
F

in
d

in
g

S
ch

em
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
re

ce
iv

es
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 
eq

ua
l p

ay
 s

et
tle

m
en

ts
 m

ad
e 

by
 a

dm
itt

ed
 b

od
ie

s.
 S

om
e 

bu
t n

ot
 a

ll 
ad

m
itt

ed
 b

od
ie

s 
ha

ve
 m

ad
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 in
 

re
sp

ec
t o

f e
qu

al
 p

ay
. T

he
re

 is
 a

 r
is

k 
th

is
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 a
 

m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t o
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 in
co

m
e 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 

I h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 m

an
ag

em
en

t’s
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

m
ad

e 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f e

qu
al

 p
ay

.  

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 m
ad

e 
w

ith
in

 m
aj

or
 s

ch
ed

ul
ed

 b
od

ie
s 

to
 th

e 
fu

nd
 a

nd
 

as
se

ss
ed

 if
 th

ey
 m

ay
 g

iv
e 

ris
e 

to
 p

ot
en

tia
l m

at
er

ia
l a

ss
et

s 
to

 th
e 

fu
nd

, i
f c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 
w

er
e 

no
t m

ad
e.

 I 
am

 s
at

is
fie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

du
ce

d 
to

 a
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ly

 lo
w

 le
ve

l.

In
ve

st
m

en
t v

al
ua

tio
ns

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
(S

O
R

P
) 

re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 to
 b

e 
at

 
m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

r 
w

he
re

 th
e 

va
lu

e 
is

 n
ot

 r
ea

di
ly

 
as

ce
rt

ai
na

bl
e,

 a
t t

he
 F

un
d'

s 
es

tim
at

e 
of

 ‘f
ai

r 
va

lu
e’

.  

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
de

sc
rib

e 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 u
se

d 
fo

r 
un

qu
ot

ed
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
he

dg
e 

fu
nd

s 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
eq

ui
ty

 .T
he

se
 a

re
 in

 
lin

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
ns

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

or
s,

 o
r 

w
he

re
 th

es
e 

ar
e 

no
t a

va
ila

bl
e,

 a
t t

he
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t m

an
ag

er
s’

 v
al

ua
tio

n.
  

A
s 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 m

y 
20

10
/1

1 
A

nn
ua

l G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

an
d 

su
pp

le
m

en
t, 

un
qu

ot
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, p
rim

ar
ily

 p
riv

at
e 

eq
ui

ty
, w

er
e 

un
de

rv
al

ue
d 

by
 £

13
m

 b
ec

au
se

  o
ut

 o
f d

at
e 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 w

er
e 

us
ed

. 

   

I h
av

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d'

s 
du

e 
di

lig
en

ce
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 it

s 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 A
A

F
 0

1/
06

, I
S

A
E

 3
40

2 
co

nt
ro

ls
 

re
po

rt
s 

fr
om

 in
ve

st
m

en
t m

an
ag

er
s,

 a
nd

 fo
un

d 
th

es
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 to

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

. 

M
y 

te
am

 is
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

el
y 

te
st

in
g 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

. T
he

ir 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

so
 fa

r 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

tw
o 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 w
he

re
 in

co
rr

ec
t c

ur
re

nc
y 

ra
te

s 
w

er
e 

ap
pl

ie
d.

 T
hi

s 
ha

s 
le

ad
 to

 
an

 o
ve

rs
ta

te
m

en
t o

f £
3.

27
9m

 in
 th

e 
ne

t a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t. 

I p
la

n 
to

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 m
y 

te
st

in
g 

by
 th

e 
18

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 If
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

an
y 

fu
rt

he
r 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

rr
or

s 
I w

ill
 u

pd
at

e 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
s 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 A

ud
it 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
m

itt
ee

.  

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

7
 

Page 45



R
is

k
F

in
d

in
g

Im
pa

ct
 o

f r
ed

un
da

nc
ie

s 
on

 c
ap

ac
ity

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 

F
un

d 

I a
m

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 W
irr

al
 C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
ve

 u
nd

er
go

ne
 a

 r
ed

un
da

nc
y 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 2

01
0/

11
 a

nd
 

20
11

/1
2.

 T
hi

s 
m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

e 
te

am
 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 m

at
er

ia
lly

 c
or

re
ct

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s.

 

T
he

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 w
er

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 w

ith
in

 d
ea

dl
in

e,
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s.

  

W
e 

ha
ve

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

re
gu

la
r 

di
al

og
ue

 w
ith

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
of

fic
er

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ke
pt

 in
fo

rm
ed

 o
f s

ig
ni

fic
an

t c
ha

ng
es

 in
 r

es
ou

rc
es

. W
he

re
 p

ot
en

tia
l w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
ar

ou
nd

 
se

pa
ra

tio
n 

of
 d

ut
ie

s 
ha

ve
 a

ris
en

 fr
om

 th
e 

ne
w

 s
tr

uc
tu

re
, w

e 
ar

e 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

ap
pl

ie
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

to
 m

iti
ga

te
 r

is
ks

. 

 

W
ea

kn
es

se
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

It 
is

 th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 fi
na

nc
ia

l c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 to
 p

ut
 in

 p
la

ce
 p

ro
pe

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 
m

on
ito

r 
th

ei
r 

ad
eq

ua
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 M

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

as
 y

ou
r 

au
di

to
r 

is
 to

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

pu
t a

de
qu

at
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 to
 s

at
is

fy
 it

se
lf 

th
at

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l c

on
tr

ol
 a

re
 b

ot
h 

ad
eq

ua
te

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
in

 p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

I h
av

e 
te

st
ed

 th
e 

co
nt

ro
ls

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
ex

te
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 fo

r 
m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
m

y 
au

di
t. 

I a
m

 n
ot

 e
xp

re
ss

in
g 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
ov

er
al

l 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
. 

T
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 is

 o
nl

y 
th

at
 I 

ha
ve

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

au
di

t t
ha

t i
s 

re
le

va
nt

 to
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

T
ab

le
 2

: 
W

ea
kn

es
s 

in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

o
n

tr
o

l 

 Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

O
ut

 o
f d

at
e 

lis
t o

f a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 c

or
re

sp
on

de
nc

e 
fr

om
 e

xt
er

na
l b

od
ie

s,
 fo

r 
ex

am
pl

e 
F

un
d 

M
an

ag
er

s.

A
n 

ex
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 o
f t

he
 F

un
d 

is
 s

til
l l

is
te

d 
as

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 c
or

re
sp

on
de

nc
e 

fr
om

 e
xt

er
na

l 
bo

di
es

, f
or

 e
xa

m
pl

e,
 F

un
d 

M
an

ag
er

s.
 T

hi
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

t M
P

F
 fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 3
 y

ea
rs

. W
hi

ls
t t

hi
s 

em
pl

oy
ee

 is
 s

til
l e

m
pl

oy
ed

 b
y 

W
irr

al
 M

B
C

, i
t i

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

ha
t o

nl
y 

au
th

or
is

ed
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
of

 th
e 

fu
nd

 a
re

 a
ut

ho
ris

ed
 to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 s
uc

h 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n.
 I 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
to

ld
 

th
at

 th
e 

F
un

d 
ha

s 
po

st
po

ne
d 

up
da

tin
g 

th
is

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

as
 it

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
aw

ai
tin

g 
th

e 
co

nc
lu

si
on

 o
f 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 r
es

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
vi

se
d 

ba
nk

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
hi

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
w

ith
ou

t f
ur

th
er

 d
el

ay
. 

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

8
 

Page 46



 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
1

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

au
th

or
is

ed
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

lis
t i

s 
up

da
te

d.
 . 

 

O
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 

I a
m

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

e 
to

 y
ou

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t f

in
di

ng
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 m

at
te

rs
 th

at
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t t
o 

yo
ur

 o
ve

rs
ig

ht
 o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g.
 

!
 

Q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 y

ou
r 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
pr

ac
tic

e 
!

 
M

at
te

rs
 s

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

by
 o

th
er

 a
ud

iti
ng

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 to

 b
e 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

ed
 to

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 is
su

es
 a

bo
ut

 
fr

au
d,

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

, e
xt

er
na

l c
on

fir
m

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 r

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

. 
!

 
O

th
er

 a
ud

it 
m

at
te

rs
 o

f g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

in
te

re
st

. 
 M

y 
fin

di
ng

s 
ar

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 in

 th
e 

ta
bl

e 
be

lo
w

: 

T
ab

le
 3

: 
O

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 
 

Is
su

e
F

in
d

in
g

B
re

ac
h 

of
 th

e 
Lo

ca
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

t o
f F

un
ds

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 

20
09

 in
 r

eg
ar

ds
 to

 in
ve

st
m

en
t l

im
its

. 

 

T
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

t o
f F

un
ds

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
9 

(w
hi

ch
 c

am
e 

in
to

 fo
rc

e 
on

 1
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
0)

 s
et

 o
ut

 a
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

ds
 to

 fo
llo

w
 w

he
n 

pl
an

ni
ng

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

ve
st

m
en

t l
im

its
. I

n 
20

11
/1

2 
th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ex
ce

ed
ed

 th
e 

lim
its

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
ei

r 
cu

rr
en

t S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
t 

P
rin

ci
pa

ls
 (

S
IP

),
 w

ith
ou

t f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

th
e 

pr
op

er
 p

ro
ce

du
re

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns

F
in

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
T

he
 P

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 h

as
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 in
st

ru
m

en
ts

 d
is

cl
os

ur
es

 in
 2

01
1/

12
, i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

. T
o 

be
 fu

lly
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

,  f
ur

th
er

 e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

ne
ed

ed
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 r
eg

ar
ds

 to
 th

e 
qu

an
tit

iv
e 

re
po

rt
in

g 
of

 c
re

di
t, 

cu
rr

en
cy

 a
nd

 li
qu

id
ity

 
ris

k.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

9
 

Page 47



R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

R
2

Im
pl

em
en

t r
ob

us
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 in

ve
st

m
en

t l
im

its
 s

et
 in

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
t P

rin
ci

pa
ls

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 fu

tu
re

 b
re

ac
he

s 
of

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l G
ov

er
nm

en
t P

en
si

on
 S

ch
em

e 
(M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
ve

st
m

en
t o

f F
un

ds
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

9 
do

 n
ot

 o
cc

ur
. 

 

R
3

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

ep
or

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

cr
ed

it 
an

d 
liq

ui
di

ty
 r

is
k,

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

 

 P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 

T
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 it

s 
dr

af
t A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t o

n 
1 

A
ug

us
t 2

01
2.

 U
po

n 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 m
y 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, t

he
 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
w

ill
 p

re
pa

re
 it

s 
fin

al
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t, 

w
hi

ch
 I 

w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

. A
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

I h
av

e 
no

t y
et

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 m

y 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t. 
I e

xp
ec

t t
o 

re
po

rt
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t b
y 

18
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
. 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

10
 

Page 48



F
ee

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

I r
ep

o
rt

ed
 m

y 
p

la
n

n
ed

 a
u

d
it

 f
ee

 in
 t

h
e 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

A
u

d
it

 P
la

n
. 

I w
ill

 c
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
au

di
t w

ith
in

 th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

fe
e.

 

T
ab

le
 4

: 
F

ee
s

 

P
la

n
n

ed
 f

ee
 2

01
1/

12
 (

£)
E

xp
ec

te
d

 f
ee

 2
01

1/
12

 (
£)

A
ud

it
59

,1
81

59
,1

81

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k

0
0

T
o

ta
l

59
,1

81
59

,1
81

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

11
 

Page 49



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

12
 A

p
p

en
d

ix
 1

 –
 D

ra
ft

 in
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
au

d
it

o
r’

s 
re

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

D
R

A
F

T
 IN

D
E

P
E

N
D

E
N

T
 A

U
D

IT
O

R
’S

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 O
F

 W
IR

R
A

L
 B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 -
 E

X
C

E
R

P
T

 R
E

G
A

R
D

IN
G

 

M
E

R
S

E
Y

S
ID

E
 P

E
N

S
IO

N
 F

U
N

D
. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 
 I h

av
e 

au
di

te
d 

th
e 

pe
ns

io
n 

fu
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
un

de
r 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8.

 T
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 c

om
pr

is
e 

th
e 

F
un

d 
A

cc
ou

nt
, t

he
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

re
la

te
d 

no
te

s.
 T

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

ep
or

tin
g 

fr
am

ew
or

k 
th

at
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
 th

ei
r 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

is
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 2

01
1/

12
. 

 T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 o
th

er
 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
pu

bl
is

he
d 

by
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 in
 M

ar
ch

 
20

10
. 

 R
es

p
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

 A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r’s
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s,
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f A

cc
ou

nt
s,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
, i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 p
ro

pe
r 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
, a

nd
 fo

r 
be

in
g 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 th
ey

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

. M
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
is

 to
 a

ud
it 

an
d 

ex
pr

es
s 

an
 o

pi
ni

on
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 la

w
 a

nd
 In

te
rn

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 o
n 

A
ud

iti
ng

 
(U

K
 a

nd
 Ir

el
an

d)
. T

ho
se

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
ud

iti
ng

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

oa
rd

’s
 E

th
ic

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r 

A
ud

ito
rs

. 
 S

co
p

e 
o

f 
th

e 
au

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

fi
n

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

Page 50



 A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 to
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

co
ns

is
te

nt
ly

 a
pp

lie
d 

an
d 

ad
eq

ua
te

ly
 d

is
cl

os
ed

; t
he

 r
ea

so
na

bl
en

es
s 

of
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

 m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

C
hi

ef
 F

in
an

ci
al

 O
ffi

ce
r;

 a
nd

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 I 

re
ad

 a
ll 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
an

d 
no

n-
fin

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ex
pl

an
at

or
y 

fo
re

w
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. I

f I
 b

ec
om

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 a

pp
ar

en
t m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

in
co

ns
is

te
nc

ie
s 

I c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r 
m

y 
re

po
rt

. 
 O

p
in

io
n

 o
n

 f
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

 In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

: 
gi

ve
 a

 tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 p
en

si
on

 fu
nd

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

 e
nd

ed
 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
an

d 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 a
nd

 d
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
’s

 a
ss

et
s 

an
d 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s 
as

 a
t 3

1 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

2,
 o

th
er

 th
an

 li
ab

ili
tie

s 
to

 p
ay

 p
en

si
on

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s 

af
te

r 
th

e 
en

d 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

ye
ar

; a
nd

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 p
re

pa
re

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

 O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 
 In

 m
y 

op
in

io
n,

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

gi
ve

n 
in

 th
e 

ex
pl

an
at

or
y 

fo
re

w
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
co

nt
en

t o
f t

he
 A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

13
 

Page 51



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 D
ra

ft
 in

d
ep

en
d

en
t 

au
d

it
o

r’
s 

re
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e 
P

en
si

o
n

 
F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 
D

R
A

F
T

 IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 A
U

D
IT

O
R

’S
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
 O

F
 W

IR
R

A
L

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

p
en

si
o

n
 f

u
n

d
 a

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 

I h
av

e 
au

di
te

d 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
 T

he
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

pr
is

e 
th

e 
F

un
d 

A
cc

ou
nt

, t
he

 N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t a

nd
 th

e 
re

la
te

d 
no

te
s.

 T
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

th
at

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ap

pl
ie

d 
in

 th
ei

r 
pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
is

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
 la

w
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

IP
F

A
/L

A
S

A
A

C
 C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 2
01

1/
12

. 

T
hi

s 
re

po
rt

 is
 m

ad
e 

so
le

ly
 to

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 P

ar
t I

I o
f t

he
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8 
an

d 
fo

r 
no

 o
th

er
 

pu
rp

os
e,

 a
s 

se
t o

ut
 in

 p
ar

ag
ra

ph
 4

8 
of

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 in

 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

0.
 

R
es

p
ec

ti
ve

 r
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

C
h

ie
f 

F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ff
ic

er
 a

n
d

 a
u

d
it

o
r 

A
s 

ex
pl

ai
ne

d 
m

or
e 

fu
lly

 in
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r's
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s,
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r 
is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 fo
r 

be
in

g 
sa

tis
fie

d 
th

at
 th

ey
 g

iv
e 

a 
tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
. M

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

is
 to

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
ex

pr
es

s 
an

 
op

in
io

n 
on

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 la
w

 a
nd

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

n 
A

ud
iti

ng
 (

U
K

 a
nd

 Ir
el

an
d)

. T
ho

se
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
re

qu
ire

 m
e 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
’s

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
.

S
co

p
e 

o
f 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
th

e 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

A
n 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s 
ob

ta
in

in
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

 g
iv

e 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
ss

ur
an

ce
 th

at
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 fr

ee
 fr

om
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t, 

w
he

th
er

 c
au

se
d 

by
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

n 
as

se
ss

m
en

t o
f: 

w
he

th
er

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
14

 

Page 52



po
lic

ie
s 

ar
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 to

 th
e 

fu
nd

’s
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

an
d 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 a

pp
lie

d 
an

d 
ad

eq
ua

te
ly

 d
is

cl
os

ed
; t

he
 r

ea
so

na
bl

en
es

s 
of

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 F
in

an
ci

al
 O

ffi
ce

r;
 a

nd
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 I 
re

ad
 a

ll 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

an
d 

no
n-

fin
an

ci
al

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
m

at
er

ia
l i

nc
on

si
st

en
ci

es
 w

ith
 th

e 
au

di
te

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. I

f I
 b

ec
om

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 

ap
pa

re
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

r 
in

co
ns

is
te

nc
ie

s 
I c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 fo
r 

m
y 

re
po

rt
. 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 f

in
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n 
th

e 
pe

ns
io

n 
fu

nd
’s

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

: 
! 

gi
ve

 a
 tr

ue
 a

nd
 fa

ir 
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l t
ra

ns
ac

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 p

en
si

on
 fu

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

an
d 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 a

nd
 

di
sp

os
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 fu
nd

’s
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 a

t 3
1 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2;

 a
nd

 
! 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 p

ro
pe

rly
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
IP

F
A

/L
A

S
A

A
C

 C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 

20
11

/1
2.

 

O
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 o

th
er

 m
at

te
rs

 

In
 m

y 
op

in
io

n,
 th

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
gi

ve
n 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 r
ep

or
t f

or
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

re
 p

re
pa

re
d 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

. 
    M

ic
ha

el
 T

ho
m

as
 

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 A
sp

in
al

l H
ou

se
 

A
sp

in
al

l C
lo

se
 

H
or

w
ic

h 
 

B
ol

to
n 

B
L6

 6
Q

Q
 

   S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

15
 

Page 53



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 C
o

rr
ec

te
d

 e
rr

o
rs

 
I i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
er

ro
rs

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

au
di

t w
hi

ch
 m

an
ag

em
en

t h
av

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

in
 th

e 
re

vi
se

d 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 

F
u

n
d

 A
cc

o
u

n
t

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t

Ite
m

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
N

at
ur

e 
of

 e
rr

or
D

r 
£’

00
0s

C
r 

£’
00

0s
D

r 
£’

00
0s

C
r 

£’
00

0s

N
et

 a
ss

et
s 

st
at

em
en

t -
 

U
nq

uo
te

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
O

ve
rs

ta
te

m
en

t o
f u

nq
uo

te
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 th
ro

ug
h 

us
e 

of
 in

co
rr

ec
t 

cu
rr

en
cy

 c
on

ve
rs

io
n 

ra
te

s.

3,
27

9
 

 
3,

27
9

F
un

d 
m

an
ag

er
 

ex
pe

ns
es

U
nd

er
st

at
em

en
t o

f F
un

d 
m

an
ag

er
 

ex
pe

ns
es

.
18

8
 

 
18

8

F
un

d 
ac

co
un

t (
&

 n
ot

e 
6)

 -
  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le

O
ve

rs
ta

te
m

en
t o

f e
m

pl
oy

ee
’s

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
, u

nd
er

st
at

em
en

t o
f 

em
pl

oy
er

’s
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

.

74
3 

  

74
3 

  

 
 

N
ot

e 
11

 -
 In

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

co
m

e
D

iv
id

en
d 

in
co

m
e 

in
co

rr
ec

tly
 c

la
ss

ifi
ed

 
as

 in
te

re
st

 o
n 

sh
or

t t
er

m
 c

as
h 

de
po

si
ts

.

55
3

55
3

 
 

N
ot

e 
11

 -
 In

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

co
m

e
In

ve
st

m
en

t m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ee
 c

re
di

t 
in

co
rr

ec
tly

 c
la

ss
ifi

ed
 a

s 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

co
m

e.
 

3,
68

7
3,

68
7

 
 

N
ot

e 
13

 (
a)

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 U

K
 q

uo
te

d 
eq

ui
tie

s 
to

 o
ve

rs
ea

s 
qu

ot
ed

 e
qu

iti
es

.  

 

 
 

12
,1

83
12

,1
83

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s

R
ev

is
io

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
ie

s 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 
 

 
 

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

16
 

Page 54



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

17

F
u

n
d

 A
cc

o
u

n
t

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t

ar
ea

s.
 S

pe
ci

fic
al

ly
: 

!
 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

tr
ea

tm
en

t o
f i

nc
om

e 
fo

r 
po

ol
ed

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
; 

!
 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

on
 m

ov
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ne

t m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 o
f 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

;  
 

!
 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 ta

x 
on

 
fu

nd
 e

xp
en

se
 it

em
s;

 

!
 

In
cl

us
io

n 
of

 p
ol

ic
y 

on
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

lia
bi

lit
ie

s;
  

!
 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
na

rr
at

iv
e 

of
 p

ol
ic

y 
fo

r 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 
sc

he
m

es
; 

!
 

E
nh

an
ce

m
en

t o
f t

he
 b

as
is

 fo
r 

es
tim

at
es

 to
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
in

he
re

nt
 

un
ce

rt
ai

nt
ie

s 
an

d 
ju

dg
em

en
t u

se
d 

in
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 th

e 
va

lu
at

io
n 

es
tim

at
es

 fo
r 

un
qu

ot
ed

 
in

ve
st

m
en

ts
; 

!
 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

co
st

s 
re

la
te

d 
to

 
po

ol
ed

 in
ve

st
m

en
t v

eh
ic

le
s;

 a
nd

 

!
 

E
nh

an
ce

d 
po

lic
y 

fo
r 

pr
op

er
ty

 
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s

R
em

ov
al

 o
f a

 n
ot

e 
on

 p
rio

r 
pe

rio
d 

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 w
ith

in
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
po

lic
ie

s.
 N

o 
pr

io
r 

pe
rio

d 
ad

ju
st

m
en

ts
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

pl
ie

d 
in

 2
01

1/
12

. 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 55



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

18

F
u

n
d

 A
cc

o
u

n
t

N
et

 A
ss

et
s 

S
ta

te
m

en
t

F
un

d 
ac

co
un

t -
  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 

re
ce

iv
ab

le

O
ve

rs
ta

te
m

en
t o

f £
92

2K
 o

f 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 in

co
m

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 

re
co

rd
ed

 in
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f 2
01

1-
12

 w
hi

ch
 

re
la

te
s 

to
 2

01
0-

11
.

 
 

 
 

N
ot

e 
13

 -
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
R

em
ov

al
 o

f p
ur

ch
as

es
 a

nd
 s

al
es

 o
f 

sh
or

t t
er

m
 c

as
h 

de
po

si
ts

.
 

 
 

 

N
ot

e 
10

 –
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

ex
pe

ns
es

A
dd

iti
on

 o
f a

n 
ex

pl
an

at
or

y 
no

te
.

 
 

 
 

N
ot

e 
6 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

in
co

m
e

D
ef

ic
it 

fu
nd

in
g 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 m

ag
is

tr
at

es
 

co
ur

ts
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 a
s 

£6
.4

 m
ill

io
n.

 
S

ho
ul

d 
be

 £
1.

4 
m

ill
io

n.

 
 

 
 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f t
he

 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

ac
tu

ar
y

F
un

d 
de

fic
it 

w
as

 in
co

rr
ec

tly
 r

ec
or

de
d 

as
 £

14
00

 m
ill

io
n.

 A
ct

ua
ry

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 
no

te
 s

ta
tin

g 
£1

31
0 

m
ill

io
n.

 
 

 
 

N
ot

e 
14

a 
– 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
of

 
fin

an
ci

al
 in

st
ru

m
en

ts

£1
2,

25
1K

 fi
na

nc
ia

l l
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

at
 

am
or

tis
ed

 c
os

t i
nc

or
re

ct
ly

 r
ec

or
de

d 
as

 
lo

an
s 

an
d 

re
ce

iv
ab

le
s.

 
 

 
 

N
ot

e 
21

 -
 R

el
at

ed
 P

ar
ty

 
T

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
R

ev
is

io
n 

to
 th

e 
ke

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pe

rs
on

ne
l t

ab
le

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
up

da
te

d 
gu

id
an

ce
. E

nh
an

ce
m

en
t a

nd
 r

ev
is

io
n 

of
 s

om
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

te
xt

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
no

te
.

 
 

 
 

    

Page 56



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 4
 –

 D
ra

ft
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
  -

 A
u

d
it

 f
o

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

n
d

ed
 3

1/
03

/2
01

2 

I c
on

fir
m

 to
 th

e 
be

st
 o

f m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
an

d 
be

lie
f, 

ha
vi

ng
 m

ad
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 e

nq
ui

rie
s 

of
 o

th
er

 d
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
of

fic
er

s 
of

 M
er

se
ys

id
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
an

d 
W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il,

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 to

 y
ou

 in
 c

on
ne

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
ed

 3
1/

03
/2

01
2.

  

C
o

m
p

lia
n

ce
 w

it
h

 t
h

e 
st

at
u

to
ry

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

es
 

I h
av

e 
fu

lfi
lle

d 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

un
de

r 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

(E
ng

la
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1 

an
d 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
 w

hi
ch

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
ue

 a
nd

 fa
ir 

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 p
os

iti
on

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 o
f t

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d,

 fo
r 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 y

ou
, a

nd
 fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
ac

cu
ra

te
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 to

 y
ou

.  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 r
ec

o
rd

s 

I h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
al

l r
el

ev
an

t i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 p

er
so

ns
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
an

d 
W

irr
al

 B
or

ou
gh

 C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 y

ou
r 

au
di

t. 
I h

av
e 

pr
op

er
ly

 r
ef

le
ct

ed
 a

nd
 r

ec
or

de
d 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 a

ll 
th

e 
tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
by

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 

I h
av

e 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
ed

 to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
de

fic
ie

nc
ie

s 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 a
w

ar
e.

 

Ir
re

g
u

la
ri

ti
es

 

I a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
m

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

de
si

gn
, i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f i
nt

er
na

l c
on

tr
ol

 to
 p

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
ec

t f
ra

ud
 o

r 
er

ro
r.

 

I a
ls

o 
co

nf
irm

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

: 
!

 
m

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

of
 fr

au
d,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
fr

au
d,

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
ei

th
er

 m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ho
 h

av
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

ol
es

 in
 in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

r 
ot

he
rs

 
w

he
re

 fr
au

d 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 a
 m

at
er

ia
l e

ffe
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

;  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

19
 

Page 57



!
 

m
y 

kn
ow

le
dg

e 
of

 a
ny

 a
lle

ga
tio

ns
 o

f f
ra

ud
, o

r 
su

sp
ec

te
d 

fr
au

d,
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

en
tit

y’
s 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

ed
 b

y 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 fo
rm

er
 

em
pl

oy
ee

s,
 a

na
ly

st
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

or
s 

or
 o

th
er

s;
 a

nd
 

!
 

th
e 

re
su

lts
 o

f o
ur

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t o

f t
he

 r
is

k 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 m

ay
 b

e 
m

at
er

ia
lly

 m
is

st
at

ed
 a

s 
a 

re
su

lt 
of

 fr
au

d.
 

 L
aw

, r
eg

u
la

ti
o

n
s,

 c
o

n
tr

ac
tu

al
 a

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 a
n

d
 c

o
d

es
 o

f 
p

ra
ct

ic
e 

I h
av

e 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

to
 y

ou
 a

ll 
kn

ow
n 

in
st

an
ce

s 
of

 n
on

-c
om

pl
ia

nc
e,

 o
r 

su
sp

ec
te

d 
no

n-
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s,

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
od

es
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 w

ho
se

 
ef

fe
ct

s 
sh

ou
ld

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
n 

pr
ep

ar
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

O
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
br

ea
ch

 o
f r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

re
po

rt
ed

 in
 T

ab
le

 3
, t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 la
w

, 
re

gu
la

tio
n 

or
 o

th
er

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
 T

he
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

ha
s 

co
m

pl
ie

d 
w

ith
 a

ll 
as

pe
ct

s 
of

 c
on

tr
ac

tu
al

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

m
at

er
ia

l e
ffe

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ev
en

t o
f n

on
-c

om
pl

ia
nc

e.
   

A
ll 

kn
ow

n 
ac

tu
al

 o
r 

po
ss

ib
le

 li
tig

at
io

n 
an

d 
cl

ai
m

s,
 w

ho
se

 e
ffe

ct
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 w
he

n 
pr

ep
ar

in
g 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, h
av

e 
be

en
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 
to

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

ac
co

un
te

d 
fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pl
ic

ab
le

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
ep

or
tin

g 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 e
st

im
at

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ai
r 

va
lu

es
 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
 u

se
d 

in
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 th

os
e 

m
ea

su
re

d 
at

 fa
ir 

va
lu

e.
  

F
or

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

es
tim

at
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 P
riv

at
e 

E
qu

ity
, H

ed
ge

 F
un

ds
 a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

t P
ro

pe
rt

y 
va

lu
at

io
ns

, I
 c

on
fir

m
: 

!
 

th
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
ne

ss
 o

f t
he

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t m
et

ho
d,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

la
te

d 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

od
el

s,
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

ns
is

te
nc

y 
in

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
m

et
ho

d;
 

!
 

th
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly
 r

ef
le

ct
 m

an
ag

em
en

t’s
 in

te
nt

 a
nd

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 s
pe

ci
fic

 c
ou

rs
es

 o
f a

ct
io

n 
on

 b
eh

al
f o

f t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d,
 w

he
re

 
re

le
va

nt
 to

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
es

tim
at

es
 a

nd
 d

is
cl

os
ur

es
; 

!
 

th
e 

di
sc

lo
su

re
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

es
tim

at
e 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
an

d 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 u
nd

er
 th

e 
C

od
e;

 a
nd

 
!

 
th

at
 n

o 
su

bs
eq

ue
nt

 e
ve

nt
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
to

 a
dj

us
t t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
es

tim
at

e 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
di

sc
lo

su
re

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 
 R

el
at

ed
 p

ar
ty

 t
ra

n
sa

ct
io

n
s 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

 I 
ha

ve
 d

is
cl

os
ed

 th
e 

id
en

tit
y 

of
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d’

s 
re

la
te

d 
pa

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
al

l t
he

 r
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 tr
an

sa
ct

io
ns

 o
f w

hi
ch

 I 
am

 
aw

ar
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 a
cc

ou
nt

ed
 fo

r 
an

d 
di

sc
lo

se
d 

su
ch

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 a

nd
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 C

od
e.

 
 S

u
b

se
q

u
en

t 
ev

en
ts

I h
av

e 
ad

ju
st

ed
 fo

r 
or

 d
is

cl
os

ed
 in

 th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
ll 

re
le

va
nt

 e
ve

nt
s 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 to

 th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

20
 

Page 58



  S
ig

ne
d 

on
 b

eh
al

f o
f M

er
se

ys
id

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

I c
on

fir
m

 th
at

  t
hi

s 
le

tte
r 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
 a

nd
 a

gr
ee

d 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

itt
ee

 o
n 

19
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
. 

 S
ig

ne
d 

N
am

e 

P
os

iti
on

 

D
at

e 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

21
 

Page 59



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 5
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y 
A

n
n

u
al

 A
u

d
it

 L
et

te
r 

 

Le
tte

r 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

af
te

r 
th

e 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

au
di

t t
ha

t s
um

m
ar

is
es

 th
e 

au
di

t w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t i
n 

th
e 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 a

ud
ito

rs
’ w

or
k.

  

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 th
os

e 
ch

ar
ge

d 
w

ith
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
be

fo
re

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

is
su

es
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n.

 

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

an
 a

ud
ito

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
)

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 
in

 th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 
22

 

Page 60



C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

F
in

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

, w
hi

ch
 r

ep
or

t t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l p
os

iti
on

 o
f t

he
 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

A
cc

ou
nt

s 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

(E
ng

la
nd

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

01
1 

an
d 

th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

in
 th

e 
U

ni
te

d 
K

in
gd

om
. 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 r

ea
so

na
bl

e 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

of
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 
op

er
at

io
ns

, i
nt

er
na

l f
in

an
ci

al
 c

on
tr

ol
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
.  

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 fi
na

nc
ia

l 
st

at
em

en
ts

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

. A
 m

at
te

r 
is

 m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

ts
 o

m
is

si
on

 w
ou

ld
 r

ea
so

na
bl

y 
in

flu
en

ce
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
s 

of
 a

n 
ad

dr
es

se
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
to

r’s
 r

ep
or

t; 
lik

ew
is

e 
a 

m
is

st
at

em
en

t i
s 

m
at

er
ia

l i
f i

t w
ou

ld
 h

av
e 

a 
si

m
ila

r 
in

flu
en

ce
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
m

ay
 a

ls
o 

be
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f a
ny

 in
di

vi
du

al
 p

rim
ar

y 
st

at
em

en
t 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 o

r 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 it

em
s 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 th

em
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
is

 n
ot

 c
ap

ab
le

 o
f g

en
er

al
 m

at
he

m
at

ic
al

 d
ef

in
iti

on
, a

s 
it 

ha
s 

bo
th

 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s’

.  

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

23
 

Page 61



P
en

si
o

n
 F

u
n

d
 A

n
n

u
al

 R
ep

o
rt

 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, t
ha

t t
he

 P
en

si
on

 F
un

d 
m

us
t p

ub
lis

h 
un

de
r 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

34
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(A
dm

in
is

tr
at

io
n)

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
00

8.
 

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce

T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f ‘

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e’

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
. S

ig
ni

fic
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ot
h 

qu
al

ita
tiv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s.
  

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d.
 T

hi
s 

te
rm

 in
cl

ud
es

 th
e 

m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 A

ut
ho

rit
y,

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

's
 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 a

nd
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

an
d 

R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
itt

ee
. 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

24
 

Page 62



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 6
 –

 A
ct

io
n

 p
la

n
 

 R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 1

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

P
en

si
on

 F
un

d'
s 

au
th

or
is

ed
 c

on
ta

ct
s 

lis
t i

s 
up

da
te

d.
 

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 2

Im
pl

em
en

t r
ob

us
t c

on
tr

ol
s 

fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 in

ve
st

m
en

t l
im

its
 s

et
 in

 th
e 

S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f I
nv

es
tm

en
t P

rin
ci

pa
ls

, t
o 

en
su

re
 th

at
 fu

tu
re

 
br

ea
ch

es
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t P
en

si
on

 S
ch

em
e 

(M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

ve
st

m
en

t o
f F

un
ds

) 
R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 2

00
9 

do
 n

ot
 o

cc
ur

.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

 3

R
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

cu
rr

en
t r

ep
or

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

cr
ed

it 
an

d 
liq

ui
di

ty
 r

is
k,

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
fu

lly
 c

om
pl

ia
nt

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
on

 L
oc

al
 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ty
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

25
 

Page 63



D
at

e
 

C
o

m
m

en
ts

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

nn
ua

l g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

26
 

Page 64



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 
fo

r 
th

e 
so

le
 u

se
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

. A
ud

ito
rs

 a
cc

ep
t n

o 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

to
: 

!
 

an
y 

di
re

ct
or

/m
em

be
r 

or
 o

ffi
ce

r 
in

 th
ei

r 
in

di
vi

du
al

 c
ap

ac
ity

; o
r 

 
!

 
an

y 
th

ird
 p

ar
ty

.  
            

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ep
te

m
b

er
 2

01
2

  

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: LAPFF CONFERENCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends the Committee to approve attendance by the Chair and the 
Executive Board member at the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF) Annual 
Conference, organised by PIRC, to be held in Bournemouth from 28 to 30 November 
2012. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 MPF is a member of LAPFF and its Annual General Meeting and annual conference 
provides a forum for topical issues affecting Local Authority Pension Funds to be 
discussed and addressed. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 LAPFF membership allows for two free conference places.  Accommodation and 
travelling costs will be met from the existing budget.  

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 

Agenda Item 7

Page 67



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That attendance at the LAPFF Conference by the Chair and the Executive Board 
member be approved. 

 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 Attendance at this conference has traditionally been by the Chair of the Pensions 
Committee accompanied by an officer.  The former Chair of the Pensions Committee is 
a Member of the Executive Committee of LAPFF. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
FNCE/147/12 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

Pensions Committee 

September 2009 

September 2010 

September 2011 

 

Page 68



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: REVIEW OF POTENTIAL UNFUNDED  

LIABILITIES FOR ADMISSION BODIES 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE  

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION  NO 

  
 
1.0    EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1  This report informs members of the details of the annual review undertaken 
by the Fund Actuary of the potential unfunded liabilities for admission bodies 
as at 31 March 2012. 

 
1.2      A further report on this agenda contains exempt information. This is by virtue 

of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, i.e. information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information)  
 

2.0  BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The results of the previous admission bodies liability review as at 31 March 
2011 was considered by the Committee on 27 June 2011 (Minute 28 refers). 
In accordance with the Committee decision on 22 March 2000 (Minute 52 
refers) officers were also asked to specifically monitor the potential unfunded 
liabilities in respect of premature closure of admission bodies with high levels 
of potential liability (£250,000 or more). This has been carried out by the 
Actuary undertaking an annual funding review and the Fund requesting and 
examining annual reports and accounts from the relevant organisations. 

  
2.2 The details in respect of the latest review of potential unfunded liabilities for 

admission bodies at 31 March 2012 are attached within the exempt 
appendices. 

 
2.3 The calculations have been determined by initially considering the 2010  

Valuation funding position and the liabilities has been updated to take account 
of contributions paid versus the cost of benefit accrued, net investment return 
on the Fund’s assets and change in bold yields. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 69



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
2.4  In accordance with the MPF’s Funding Strategy Statement the assessment of 

the employers potential exit debt will be based on a more cautious basis to 
determine final liabilities. The financial assumptions usually applicable are 
consistent with the equivalent assumptions adopted for the IAS19 Accounting  
Standard, on the proviso that the financial assumptions used are no less 
cautious than the valuation assumptions. The position of the corporate bond 
market as at 31 March 2012 means that the ongoing valuation assumptions 
are more prudent than those based on corporate bond yields due to the low 
gilt yields prevailing as a consequence of the financial crisis. As a result the 
Actuary has recommended that the valuation basis is adopted as the 
termination basis at 31 March 2012. 
 

2.5  The latest liabilities quoted are approximate and do not take into account 
updated membership information for all employers and cash flows since the 
valuation. As such, the amounts quoted do not implicitly represent the 
accurate exit debts owing if bodies participation of the scheme ceased at 31 
March 2012. However the figures provide the Fund and bodies with a 
reasonable basis to determine the contingent funding obligations and provide 
adequate risk coverage. 
 

2.6  On a general basis the bond requirements have significantly increased from 
the 2010 bond levels which are currently in force. The bond amounts 
calculated at 31 March 2011 review were less than the 2010 liability figures, 
due to the impact of the change of indexation of pension benefits from RPI to 
CPI, which had a positive effect on long term funding and liabilities. However 
the Committee resolved on 27 June 2011 that it was prudent to defer any 
reductions to the existing bond coverage depending on the outcome of the 
judicial review on the indexation of Public Sector Pensions.  

 
2.7  The Actuary has calculated the potential unfunded liabilities as follows: 

 
i. The cost of providing immediate benefits to those members age 55 or over 

in the year 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 
 

ii. Less, 50% of the potential savings that may materialise in respect of 
members under age 55 with deferred benefits.   

 
iii. Plus the existing surplus or deficit at 31 March 2012. 
 

The deficit will normally be recovered over a 15 year period by the payment of 
annual lump sum cash amounts which include allowances for assumed future 
pay inflation.  
 

2.8     On the termination of a Transferee Admission Body (TAB) agreement, the 
Regulations provide that the contribution rate for the relevant Scheme 
employer is revised to recover any unfunded pension liabilities that cannot be 
recovered either from the TAB or from any bond provided. The need to carry 
out an actuarial risk assessment and the level of required bond provision in 
these cases is a matter for the relevant Scheme employer to determine. In 
order to inform the employers of the extent of the unfunded liabilities the 
Actuary has calculated the potential costs for each TAB and the Fund will 

Page 70



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

notify the transferor scheme employer of the amounts identified in due 
course.   

 
2.9  The actual unfunded liabilities for each body would not be known until the 

body closed and precise calculations are done at that time.  
 

2.10  A number of admission bodies have found it difficult to obtain from financial 
institutions the required financial guarantees or indemnities previously 
recommended by the Actuary and alternatives such as charges against 
property or parent company guarantees have been agreed in a number of 
cases with the Fund. 
 

2.11  I believe that it is likely that in view of the current stringent credit measures 
imposed by banks and financial institutions that many admission bodies will 
find it difficult to obtain the indicated increased indemnities at this time.  There 
would also be a real likelihood of pushing a number of these organisations 
into closure, faced with a requirement to provide such further increased 
guarantees against what are only estimated potential liability figures. 

 
2.12  Having regard to the current circumstances, therefore, I would recommend 

that bond requirements are not increased based on the latest figures provided 
by the Actuary but are retained at the 31/03/2010 levels.  A further review will 
be undertaken at 31/3/2013 as part of the actuarial valuation and the level of 
bonds required should be reconsidered having regard to the outcome of the 
funding consultation and the financial position at that time. 

 
2.13   For any admission body that does not have either a local authority guarantor 

or a bond or indemnity the employer contribution rate remains subject to a 
risk premium loading to aim to achieve a funding level of 120% of the active 
member’s liabilities over the long term (normally 15 years). 

 
2.14   In order to mitigate risk of future unrecoverable debt from employers, any new 

admissions of Community Admission Bodies will be required to fund on a 
least risk basis to minimise the possibility of unfunded pension’s liabilities 
resulting in the event of closure. The opportunity to fund on this basis 
whereby the employer’s assets will then be deemed to be invested in 
Government bonds in order to minimise risk on closure has also been made 
available to existing admission bodies.  

 
3.0  RELEVANT RISKS 

3.1  The provision of adequate guarantees reduces the financial risk to all scheme 
employers from subsuming pension costs for employers exiting the Fund.  If 
compelled to implement the increased financial indemnities organisations 
may face significant financial hardship which may possibly lead to the 
employer’s insolvency or bankruptcy. The contingent termination debts would 
actually crystallise leaving the Fund with immediate unrecoverable debt with 
responsibility for honouring the pension promises made to the employees. 

Page 71



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

4.0  OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
4.1  None. 
 
5.0  CONSULTATION  

5.1 The Fund consulted with employers during autumn 2010 before updating the 
Funding Strategy Statement which includes the methodology for 
determination of bond requirements. 

 
6.0  IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1  None arising from this report. 
 
7.0  RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  
 
7.1 In the event that the increased bond coverage is sought Officers of MPF and 

the Legal Monitoring Officer will be required to engage in prolonged 
negotiations with employers. This is likely to result in non compliance of the 
employer on the grounds of affordability or the inability to obtain a bond from 
an appropriate provider    
 

8.0  LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1  None arising from this report. 
 
9.0  EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1  None arising from this report. 
 
9.2  Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
  (a)  Is an EIA required?   No  
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1    None arising from this report. 
 
11.0  PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1  None arising from this report. 
 
12.   RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
12.1  Members are recommended to consider, having regard to the current difficult 

financial circumstances and the reasonableness and practicality of 
implementation, that the bond requirements for Community Admission Bodies 
are not increased but instead are retained at the current 2010 levels. 
However, Employers will be informed of the potential unfunded liabilities to 
increase awareness of their financial obligations.   

 
12.2  The level of funding guarantees provided by local authorities or other statutory 

bodies to the Fund will however continue to be increased in accordance with 
the amount of the unfunded liability. 

 
 
 
 

Page 72



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
                                       Principal Pension Officer 
  telephone:  0151 – 242 1333 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Exempt Appendices included in committee papers 
 
  
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

Pensions Committee  

Review of Potential Unfunded Liabilities For 

Admission Bodies 

 

27 June 2011 

. 
 

 

Page 73



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: ANNUAL EMPLOYERS’ CONFERENCE 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the arrangements for the annual Employers’ 
Conference to be held on Thursday 15 November 2012. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

 
2.1 The 2012 conference will be held at Aintree Racecourse on Thursday 15 November. 
 
2.2 In addition to the annual reports on investment performance and the administration 

of the Pension Fund over the previous year, a presentation will be given by Paul 
Middleman from Mercer, the Fund Actuary and Jeff Houston, Head of Pensions at 
the Local Government Association. 
 

2.3 The draft programme commences with Coffee and Registration at 9.30am, with a 
start time of 10am. There will be an open forum for questions and an anticipated 
finish time of 1.30pm. Lunch will be provided for delegates. 
 

2.4 Members are invited to attend the Conference and further details will be circulated to 
all Members of this Committee as soon as arrangements are finalised. 

 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none rising directly from this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Other venues have been considered for appropriateness, location, transport links 
and a cost comparison to assess value for money. 

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 An online survey was taken of previous delegates in 2010 and 87% rated Aintree 
Racecourse as excellent or very good venue.  The location, public transport links 
and overall quality of Aintree Racecourse was commended.  

 
5.2 Feedback from delegates in 2011 further supported the previous year’s survey of the 

choice of venue as 94% rated it as good or excellent. 
 

Agenda Item 9

Page 79



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The cost of holding the Conference is estimated at £5,000; provision for which is 
contained within the budget. 

 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
8.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 

Yes - Access for delegates with limited mobility was assessed; appropriate 
emergency arrangements in place.  A hearing loop and relay screens will be 
provided for people with sensory impairments. 

 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That Members note the report. 

 

13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 The value of holding an annual conference was recognised following the successful 
re-introduction of this event in November 1997, with attendees appreciating the 
opportunity to hear presentations on topical issues, and receive reports on current 
Fund activity and performance. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION NO  
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the Draft Annual Report of 
Merseyside Pension Fund for 2011/12. 

 
1.2 A copy of the Annual Report will be available for Members at the meeting. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The LGPS regulations require the Pension Fund Annual Report to contain the 
Fund Account and Net Asset Statement with supporting notes and disclosures, 
prepared in accordance with proper practices. 

 
4.2  International Standards on Auditing (UK&I) 720 requires that auditors read any 

information published with the accounts. It also states the auditor should not 
issue an opinion until that other information is published.  
 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none rising directly from this report. 
 
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 Not relevant for this report. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 
 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
8.1 There are no implications arising directly from this report. 

Agenda Item 10

Page 81



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 Not relevant for this report. 
 
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That Members approve the Draft Annual Report of Merseyside Pension Fund for 
publication. 

 

13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 Regulation 34 of the Local Government Pensions Scheme (LGPS) 
Administration Regulations requires local authorities to produce an Annual 

   Report for the year to 31 March by 1 December of that year. 
 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Yvonne Caddock 
  Principal Pension Officer 
  Telephone: 0151 242 1333 
 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 82



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSION COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

 

SUBJECT: ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION 

BALFOUR BEATTY WORKPLACE LTD –  

WIRRAL COUNCIL – PREMISES OFFICER  

CONTRACT 

WARDS AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF:  INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO  

HOLDER: 

 

KEY DECISION NO 
 
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs members of my decision taken under delegation to approve 
the application received from Balfour Beatty Workplace Limited for admission to 
Merseyside Pension Fund as a Transferee Admission Body. The company has 
secured a premises officer contract with Knowsley Council – Springfield and the 
Elms School for the period from 6 August 2012 to 31 August 2034. 

 
1.2  The appendix attached to the report contains exempt information. This is by 

virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The application is to provide pension provision for two transferred staff 

members who were previously employed by Knowsley Council and wish to 
continue to participate in the local government pension scheme.   

 
2.2 Balfour Beatty Workplace Ltd is a private Limited Company, with a Company 

number of 00598379 and the date of incorporation was 4 February 1958.   
 
2.3 The principal activity of the company is the operation and maintenance of 

building support services. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The potential risk of financial loss to MPF resulting from the admittance of the 
company is mitigated by virtue of Regulation 38(3) (a) of the Local 
Government Pension (Administration) Regulations 2008. Knowsley Council 
would be responsible for any outstanding contributions on the closure of the 
body which may not be recoverable from the contractor or the bond provider.  

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 The contractor’s preferred route in accordance with the Statutory Best Value 
Authorities Staff Transfer (Pension) Direction 2007 on staff Transfers was to 
secure admitted body status as an alternative to the provision of a comparable 
pension scheme.  

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 No consultation required as staff retained access to the LGPS. 
 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 None arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 Balfour Beatty Workplace Ltd already has a Knowsley Council contractor 
admission agreement in place with the Fund, which is operating in accordance 
with the legal agreement. 

 
7.2   The transfer of past service liabilities are to proceed on a fully funded basis and 

will have no immediate impact on Knowsley Council’s current assessed 
contribution rate. 

 
7. 3 Any outstanding contributions either not recovered from the contractor or any 

bond provision at closure will ultimately fall to Knowsley Council.  
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The Legal documents to be drafted and approved by Wirral’s Legal 
Department. 

 

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 No, as there are no equalities implications as employees retain access to the 

LGPS. 
 

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report. 

Page 84



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 

12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1  It is recommended that the members of the Pension Committee note the 
approval of the application for admission to the Merseyside Pension Fund of 
Balfour Beatty Workplace Ltd. 

 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 The application for admission meets all prescribed regulatory and financial 
requirements under the Local Pension Scheme Regulations and the 
appropriate supporting documentation has been received and approved. All 
parties to the agreement are legally enforced to comply with the governance 
policy of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE CADDOCK  
  PRINCIPAL PENSION OFFICER 
  telephone:  (0151- 242-1333) 
  email:       yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 
 
Exempt Appendix included in committee papers. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

The report produced by Mercer Limited the Fund Actuary, dated 10 February 2012, 
was used in producing this report. 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSION COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

 

SUBJECT: ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION 

HEALTH MANAGEMENT LTD – LIVERPOOL 

CITY COUNCIL OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH 

SERVICES  

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER:  

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs members of my decision taken under delegation, to approve 
the application received from Health Management Ltd for admission to 
Merseyside Pension Fund as a Transferee Admission Body. The company has 
secured the occupational health services contract at Liverpool City Council from 
1 September 2012 for three years initially with an option for a further one year 
extension. 

 
1.2 The appendix attached to the report contains exempt information. This is by 

virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local government Act 
1972, i.e. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information). 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The application is to provide pension provision for one transferred staff member 
who was previously employed by Liverpool City Council and wishes to continue 
to participate in the local government pension scheme. 

 
2.2 Health Management Limited is a private limited company registered in England    

and Wales, with a Company number of 04369949. 
 
2.3 The principal activity of the company is the provision of occupational health and 

medical advice to corporate organisations. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 12

Page 87



 

Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 The potential risk of financial loss to the Fund resulting from the admittance of 
the company is mitigated by virtue of Regulation 38(3) (a) of the Local 
Government Pension (Administration) Regulations 2008. Liverpool City Council 
would be responsible for any outstanding contributions on the closure of the 
body which may not be recoverable from the contractor or bond provider. 

 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 The contractor’s preferred route in accordance with the Statutory Best Value 
Authorities Staff Transfer (Pension) Direction 2007 on staff Transfers was to 
secure admitted body status as an alternative to the provision of a comparable 
pension scheme.  

 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 No consultation required as staff retained access to the LGPS. 
 
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 None arising from this report. 
 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 The transfer of past service liabilities are to proceed on a fully funded basis and 
will have no impact on Liverpool Councils employer contribution. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 The Legal documents to be drafted and approved by Wirral’s Legal 
Department. 

 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to 
equality? 

 
 No, as there are no equalities implications as employees retain access to the 

LGPS. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None arising from this report. 
 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 None arising from this report. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



 

Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 It is recommended that the members of the Pension Committee note the 
approval of the application for admission to the Merseyside Pension Fund of 
Health Management Ltd. 

 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 The application for admission meets all prescribed regulatory and financial 
requirements under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations and 
the appropriate supporting documentation has been received and approved. All 
parties to the agreement are legally enforced to comply with the governance 
policy of Merseyside Pension Fund. 

 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE CADDOCK 
  PRINCIPAL PENSION OFFICER 
                                      telephone:  (0151 242 -1333 ) 
  email:   yvonnecaddock@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Exempt Appendix included in committee papers. 
 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

The report produced by Mercer Limited the Fund Actuary, dated 28 March 2012, was 
used in producing this report. 
 
 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: NAPF ANNUAL CONFERENCE 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER 

 

KEY DECISION?   NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report recommends the Committee to consider attendance by Members at the 
National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF) Annual Conference, to be held in 
Liverpool from 17 to 19 October 2012. 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 MPF is a member of NAPF and its annual conference provides a forum for topical 
issues affecting public and private pension funds to be discussed and addressed. 

 
2.2 Attendance would be beneficial to Members in fulfilling the Committee’s Knowledge and 

Skills objectives as set out by CIPFA. 
 
2.3 Whilst not all topics and presentations are relevant to Members, there are a number of  

useful subjects on the agenda and several high profile speakers including the Minister 
of State for Pensions, the Shadow Pensions Minister, Gabriel Bernardino (Chair of the 
European Insurance and Occupational Pensions Authority) and Lord Mandelson.  As 
the event is local, Members will be able to limit their attendance to relevant sessions as 
appropriate. 

 
2.4 Members must be registered for the event in order to attend. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 

Agenda Item 13

Page 91



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 NAPF membership allows for free conference places.   Travelling costs will be minimal. 
 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

12.1 That attendance at the NAPF conference by Members be approved. 
 
12.2 That Members wishing to attend the conference notify the Head of Pension Fund to 

enable the necessary registration and administration to be undertaken. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

13.1 Attendance at this conference will assist Members in fulfilling the Committee’s 
Knowledge and Skills objectives as set out by CIPFA. 

 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 92



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 

Appendix 1 

Wednesday 17 October  

08:30 Registration open 

09:00 - 
12:45 

Trustee Learning 
Zone - View details 

09:00 - 12:45 Fringe meetings - View 
details 

10:00 Exhibition open, refreshments served in the exhibition hall 

12:00 - 
13:30 

Lunch in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 1 

13:30 - 
14:00 

Chairman's welcome and introduction 
Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plenary 2 

14:00 - 
14:45 

Politics, power and the economy: what next for Britain and the EU? 
With the Eurozone on the brink and the future of the EU itself at stake, we get the 
ultimate insider briefing on the political and economic crisis gripping Brussels and 
Westminster. 
Lord Mandelson, former EU Commissioner  
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

14:45 - 
15:30 

Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

Plenary 3 

15:30 - 
16:00 

Keynote address 
Session to be confirmed. 

Plenary 4 

16:00 - 
16:45 

The view from Frankfurt 
Europe's top pensions regulator explains how EIOPA is reshaping the framework for 
your pension scheme and gives us an inside perspective on moves towards the new 
EU pensions Directive. 
Gabriel Bernardino, Chair of the European Insurance and Occupational Pensions 
Authority (EIOPA) 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

Plenary 5 

16:40 - 
17:20 

Living longer, working longer, saving more 

Money Saving Expert, author, journalist and campaigning TV and radio presenter, 
Martin Lewis, shares his view of the changes and challenges we face in the ways we 
live, work and save. 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

    

 

17:30 - 
18:30 Fringe meetings - View details 

Page 93



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

18:30 - 
19:30  

Welcome Drinks Reception in the exhibition hall hosted by the City of 
Liverpool 

    

 

Thursday 18 October 

 

07:30 Registration open 

07:45 - 
08:45 

NAPF fund member breakfast - for NAPF fund members by invitation only 

08:45 Exhibition open 

Plenary 6 

09:00 - 
09:40 

Auto-enrolment - ready, steady, go! 
With auto-enrolment launching officially on 1 October, two schemes in the first 
'wave' share the lessons they have learnt and their 'do's and don'ts' for other 
schemes following their footsteps. 
David Brennan, J Sainsbury 
Tim Jones, NEST Corporation 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

DB STREAM DC STREAM 

PENSIONS 
& 
EMPLOYEE 
BENEFIT 
STREAM 

FD STREAM 

 

Sponsored by 

 
Media Partner: 
tbc 

Sponsored by  

Media Partner: 

 

Sponsored by 

Media 
Partner: 

Sponsored by 

Media Partner:  

09:45 - 
10:30 
Session 1 

Data: the good, 
bad and the 
ugly 
What does 'best 
look like' when 
it comes to 
managing your 
scheme's data? 

Helping employers ensure 
value for money for their 
members 
A new charges code of 
practice is being designed to 
drive up transparency for 
employers choosing a 
pension scheme for auto-

Business 
benefit or 
blind faith? 
From 2012, 
providing a 
workplace 
pension will 
be 

The 
economy: 
knowns and 
unknowns for 
investors 
With the 
European and 
global outlook 

Page 94



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

A scheme 
manager shares 
his/her top tips 
and the Pension 
Protection Fund 
(PPF) draws on 
its experience of 
data retrieval 
from schemes in 
its assessment 
process. 
Rob 
Haslingden, 
Experian 
David Heslop, 
PPF 
Chaired by: 
David Rowley, 
Pensions Week 

enrolment. We will hear from 
industry representatives how 
providers plan to 
communicate costs, charges 
and value for money going 
forward and the steps they 
are taking to implement the 
new code of practice. 
Stephen Gay, ABI 
Lesley Williams, Whitbread 
and Vice-Chairman, NAPF 
Retirement Policy Council 
Chaired by: Alan Woods, 
Independent Adviser to the 
NAPF 

compulsory, 
and 
employers 
may take 
some 
persuading to 
do any more 
than the 
minimum. 
How can 
providing 
good pensions 
still play a 
role in active 
workforce 
strategies in 
this new 
environment, 
and what's in 
it for the 
business at 
the end of the 
day? 
Paul 
Armitage, 
JLT Benefit 
Solutions 
Gary Dewin, 
The Co-
operative 
Group 
John Wilson, 
JLT Benefit 
Solutions 
Chaired by: 
David Astley, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy 
Council 

uncertain, two 
experts share 
their thoughts 
on the current 
economic 
climate and 
potential 
scenarios for 
investors. 
Paul 
Mortimer-
Lee, BNP 
Paribas 
Co-speaker 
tbc 
Chaired by: 
David 
McGibbon, 
NAPF 
Investment 
Council 

10:30 - 
11:15 Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

11:15 - 
12:00 
Session 2 

The good 
trustee's guide 
to fiduciary 
management 
Fiduciary 
management 
allows trustees 
to delegate 
complex 

Long term saving from a 
short term perspective 
The next generation of savers 
will, almost irrespective of 
the jobs they take on, be 
automatically placed in a 
pension plan by their 
employer. Using only the 
control group of his own 

What's age 
got to do 
with it? 
Our panel of 
experts 
provide case 
studies and 
advice on 
innovation 

The 
economy: 
what it means 
for derisking 
your scheme 
The first 
session in this 
stream assesed 
the economy's 

Page 95



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

investment 
decisions to the 
experts, but it 
doesn't let 
trustees off the 
hook altogether. 
This session 
asks what good 
governance 
looks like in a 
fiduciary 
management 
world and 
shows how you 
can get 
delegation right. 
Sion Cole, Aon 
Hewitt 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: 
Darren Philp, 
Director of 
Policy, NAPF 

family, the presenter will 
explore the subject from the 
perspective of some very 
young minds! 
Philippa Cochrane, Scottish 
Book Trust 
Jamie Jenkins, Standard 
Life 
Chaired by: Mark Cobley, 
Financial News 

strategies for 
communicatin
g and 
engaging with 
different 
groups of 
employees on 
pensions and 
employee 
benefits - 
focussing on 
how 
communicatio
n with 
employees 
might need to 
change and 
adapt across 
their life 
cycle. 
Nigel 
Ferrier, 
Ferrier Pearce 
Geoff 
McKenzie, 
Vodafone 
Alex 
Thurley-
Ratcliff, 
Shilling 
Communicati
on 
Chaired by: 
Dan 
Torjussen-
Proctor, 
Business 
Development 
Director, 
NAPF 

impact on 
investments; 
now we look 
specifically at 
how the 
economy will 
help or hinder 
your journey 
towards 
derisking. 
What do 
current gilt 
yields mean 
for your 
scheme 
liabilities and 
what is the 
industry's 
capacity to 
cope with 
what some 
predict will be 
an increased 
number of 
buyouts/ins? 
Mark Duke, 
Towers 
Watson 
Andrew 
Waring, 
MNOPF 
Chaired by: 
Bruce Garner, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

 

Plenary 7 

12:05 - 
12:35 

Keeping the Coalition in check 
A year after his pensions debut at the 2011 NAPF Conference, the Shadow Pensions 
Minister sets out what he has learnt since picking up the reins and outlines his 
priorities for getting people saving. 
Gregg McClymont MP, Shadow Pensions Minister 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

12:35 - 
13:45 Lunch in the exhibition hall 

Page 96



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

13:45 - 
14:30 
Session 3 

Of Brussels 
and Barnier: 
what the new 
EU pensions 
directive means 
for your 
scheme 
The European 
Commission's 
overhaul of the 
IORP Directive 
will set a new 
framework for 
scheme funding, 
governance and 
communicaitons
. Learn more 
about the likely 
impact and how 
you can get 
involved in the 
debate. 
Tom Merchant, 
USS 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: 
James Walsh, 
Senior Policy 
Adviser: 
Workplace 
Pensions, NAPF 

Making the most of your 
pension pot at retirement 
The benefits of shopping 
around for an annuity at 
retirement are significant. 
How can industry-led 
solutions give DC pension 
scheme members access to 
the whole of market guidance 
and advice at retirement in a 
targeted and cost-effective 
way? 
Alan Higham, Annuity 
Direct 
Julian Webb, FIL 
Investment Management 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Mel Duffield, 
Head of Research and 
Strategic Policy, NAPF 

Knowledge is 
power - 
making the 
member data 
work for you 
How can 
liberating 
member data 
give 
employers 
greater 
control, give 
employees 
better 
engagement 
with their 
savings and 
benefits, drive 
up 
efficiencies 
and drive 
down costs? 
Speakers tbc 
Chaired by: 
Darren Philp, 
Director of 
Policy, NAPF 

Session to be 
confirmed. 

14:35 - 
15:15 
Session 4 

Managing DB 
risk in the mid 
market  
Some de-risking 
options are seen 
as the preserve 
of hte largest 
schemes, but 
how can other 
schemes benefit 
from the latest 
approaches to 
managing risk? 
Hear from those 
who have been 
there and done it 
with schemes in 
the middle of 
the market. 
Steve Balmont, 

Where is risk in DC? 
Investment is all about risk - 
from short term volatility to 
long term inflation - and DC 
is no different. What are the 
risks, why do people tend to 
'set and forget' in their default 
strategies and what are the 
things to consider in taking 
alternative approaches? What 
is the consumer perspective 
on risk in DC, and what can 
the industry do to shore up 
confidence in pension 
saving? 
Andrew Dickson, Standard 
Life Investments 
Jeff Prestridge, Mail on 
Sunday 
Chaired by: Jerry Gandhi, 

Is the future 
flexible? 
How are 
flexible 
benefits 
packages 
developing to 
help 
employers 
deliver auto-
enrolment, 
and will we 
see a shift 
towards flex 
systems as the 
advantages of 
these 
packages 
become clear? 
Will flexible 

Incentivised 
transfers: has 
the code 
cracked it? 

What 
difference has 
the new 
industry Code 
of Practice 
made to 
Enhanced 
Transfer 
exercises and 
Pension 
Increase 
Exchanges? 
One of the 
Code's 
author's and a 
finance 

Page 97



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

Law Debenture 
Paul McGlone, 
Aon Hewitt 
Chaired by: 
Stella Eastwood, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

NAPF Retirement Policy 
Council 

benefits be a 
game changer 
for take-up of 
pensions? 
Jenny 
Davidson, 
CSC  
Matt Waller, 
Benefex 

Chaired by: 
Emma 
Douglas, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy 
Council  

director reflect 
on its impact. 
Margaret 
Snowdon, 
Lucida 
David 
Saunders, 
Sackers 
Chaired by: 
Jane 
Samsworth, 
NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

15:15 - 
16:00 Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

16:00 - 
16:40 
Session 5 

Employer 
covenant: 
despatches 
from the front 
line 
What is best 
practice in 
assessing, 
monitoring and 
managing the 
sponsor's 
support for a DB 
scheme? Hear 
from people 
who live and 
breathe 
employer 
convenant issues 
on a daily basis. 
Peter 
Thompson, 
BESTrustees 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Joy 
Moore, NAPF 
Retirement 
Policy Council 

The 6 Ps for good DC 
This session will hear from 
the Pensions Regulator on 
how their '6 principles' for 
DC are developing and from 
two employers/schemes on 
what they are likely to mean 
in practice across both trust 
based and contract based 
schemes. To what extent are 
schemes already ahead or 
behind the curve? 
Darran Burton, the 
Pensions Regulator 
Janis Ireland, Heineken 
Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Richard Butcher, 
NAPF Retirement Policy 
Council 

Picking a 
pension - 
made simple 
This session 
gives you 10 
top tips when 
choosing a 
pension 
scheme for 
auto-
enrolment. 
What might 
be special 
about your 
workforce 
that means 
that one 
provider 
might be 
more suitable 
than another, 
and what are 
the elephant 
traps to 
avoid? 
Speakers tbc 
Chaired by: 
David Woods, 
HR magazine  

Defined 
ambition - 
what's in it 
for FD's? 
With the 
Pensions 
Minister 
talking about a 
new 
generation of 
risk-sharing 
pension 
schemes, 
could 'defined 
ambition' help 
FDs t manage 
liabilities and 
corporate 
balance 
sheets? 
Francois 
Barker, 
Eversheds 
Co-speaker 
tbc 
Chaired by: 
Adam Walker, 
Chairman, 
NAPF 
Liverpool 
Local Group 

Page 98



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

Plenary 8 

16:45 - 
17:05 

An NAPF view 
Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

Plenary 9 

17:05 - 
17:55 

Keynote address 
Steve Webb MP, Minister of State for Pensions 
Chaired by: Joanne Segars, Chief Executive, NAPF 

18:00 - 
18:30 

Launch of the new NAPF Made Simple Guides on the NAPF stand in the 
exhibition hall 

19:30 - 
23:00 

Conference Gala Dinner sponsored by Neptune Investment Management at 
Liverpool Cathedral  

Dress code: lounge suits  

     

 

Friday 19 October 

 

08:15 Registration open 

08:30 
- 
09:00 

NAPF Annual General Meeting 

09:00 Exhibition open 

Plena
ry 10 

09:15 
- 
10:00 

Predicting impossible futures - navigating turbulent times 
Europe's trendspotter takes you on a thrill-ride driven by two questions "What's going 
on in the world?" and "Where are we heading?" 
Magnus Lindkvist 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plena
ry 11 

10:00 
- 
10:30 

Balloon debate 
What is the key to reinvigorating workplace pensions? Vote, vote and vote again to 
decide which of our experts has made the best pitch on the future of pensions and 
which should be 'eliminated' from the NAPF's metaphorical ballon. No hot air please! 
Emma Douglas, Mercer 
Robin Ellison, Pinsent Masons 
Steve Rumbles, BlackRock 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

10:30 
- 
11:15 

Refreshments in the exhibition hall 

Plena
ry 12 

11:15 

Lessons from afar 
The UK pensions landscape is going through a period of significant change. What 
lessons can we learn from the US and Australia? What are the ptifalls to avoid? 
Nancy Heller, TIAA-CREF 

Page 99



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

- 
12:00 

Co-speaker tbc 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

Plena
ry 13 

12:00 
- 
12:45 

Keynote address - The Wonders of Life 
The renowned physicist and popular scientist shares his view of Man's place in the 
Universe. 
Professor Brian Cox 
Chaired by: Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

12:45 
- 
13:00 

Closing comments 

Mark Hyde Harrison, Chairman, NAPF 

13:00 
- 
14:00 

Lunch in the exhibition hall and close of conference 

 

Page 100



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

WIRRAL COUNCIL 

PENSIONS COMMITTEE 

18 SEPTEMBER 2012 

SUBJECT: PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS 

WARD/S AFFECTED: ALL 

REPORT OF: INTERIM DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER: 

 

KEY DECISION?  ( NO 
  
1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs the Committee that Merseyside Pension Fund has been shortlisted 
in the DB Communications (public) category at the Pension Scheme of the Year 
Awards 2012. 

 
1.2 It also requests Members approve attendance by the Chair to represent the Fund at 

the ceremony. 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES 

2.1 The awards have been held for a number of years and are intended to celebrate the 
highest levels of achievement in local government pension funds.  The Fund’s 
submission highlighted the scope and variety of the Fund’s communications with 
stakeholders and the recent decision by the LGE to ask the Fund to host the LGPS 
2014 Reform website on behalf of itself and the Trades Unions. 

 
2.2 The awards ceremony is to take place on 20 September at the Brewery in London. 
 
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS  

3.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED  

4.1 No other options have been considered. 
 
5.0 CONSULTATION  

5.1 There has been no consultation undertaken or proposed for this report.  There are no 
implications for partner organisations arising from this report. 

 

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS 

6.1 There are none arising from this report. 

Agenda Item 14

Page 101



Please keep footer at this size to allow Committee Services to paginate 

 
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS  

7.1 There was no charge for entering the awards competition or for attendance at the 
awards ceremony.  The cost of travel to London and overnight accommodation can be 
met from within the existing budget provision. 

 
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  

8.1 There are none arising from this report 
 
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality? 
 
 (b) No because there is no relevance to equality. 
 
  

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no carbon usage implications, nor any other relevant environmental issues 
arising from this report. 

 
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 There are none arising from this report. 
 
12.0 RECOMMENDATION 

12.1 That attendance at the awards ceremony be approved. 
 
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 

13.1 To ensure the Fund is represented at the awards ceremony. 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: PETER WALLACH 
  HEAD OF PENSION FUND 
  telephone:  (0151) 242 1309 
  email:   peterwallach@wirral.gov.uk 
 
 
APPENDICES 

None 
 
REFERENCE MATERIAL 

 
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years) 

Council Meeting  Date 

  

 

Page 102



Agenda Item 18

Page 103

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 107

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 22

Page 109

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 23

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 LGPS UPDATE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	4 GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PART MINUTES 12/07/12
	6 AC ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT
	7 LAPFF CONFERENCE BOURNEMOUTH
	8 UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITIES
	Exempt Appendix Schedule 1(a) and 1(b)
	Exempt Appendix Schedule 2 (a) and 2(b)

	9 ANNUAL EMPLOYERS CONFERENCE
	10 DRAFT ANNUAL REPORT
	11 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - BALFOUR BEATTY
	12 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - HEALTH MANAGEMENT LTD
	13 NAPF CONFERENCE
	14 PROFESSIONAL PENSIONS AWARDS
	18 GOVERNANCE & RISK WORKING PARTY MINUTES 12 JULY, 2012.
	19 UNFUNDED PENSION LIABILITIES
	22 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - BALFOUR BEATTY EXEMPT APPENDIX
	23 ADMISSION BODY APPLICATION - HEALTH MANAGEMENT LIMITED EXEMPT APPENDIX

